"North Bay Village
Administrative Offices
1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300 North Bay Village, FL 33141
Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: {305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com

ADDENDUM NO. 2

Issued: May 13, 2014

Subject: Request for Proposals

RFP NBV No. 2014-001
Financial Auditing Services
Notice to all proposers:

Issued by: North Bay Village

PLEASE RETURN THE ATTACHED REVISED “FORM 1 — PROPOSAL
PRICING SHEET”.

Question 1:

Has the Village determined who will be evaluating the proposals? If so, please provide
the members of the audit selection committee.

Answer:
A Selection Commiittee consisting of the Village Clerk, a member from the Citizens

Budget & Oversight Board, and the Finance Director of the Town of Surfside will
evaluate and rank the proposals.

Question 2:

Why is the Village requesting a proposal security fee of $2,500?

Answer:

The Village is requesting the proposal security fee to ensure that the proposer will

execute a contract with the Village. It can be in the form of cash, cashier’s check, bid
bond, or a company check. :
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Question 3:

Why is the village requesting a cash bond, letter of credit, or performance bond in the
amount of $20,000 for financial auditing services? This is very uncommon for a contract
for audit services. In addition, the amount requested may approximate 50% of the annual
audit fee.

Answer:

Performance bonds are common in government bidding. This was considered and
approved by the selection committee.

Question 4:

Page 22 of the RFP states that the Village’s finance department will prepare the
footnotes. We assume that the Village’s finance department will also prepare the Letter of
Transmittal, the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and the Statistical Tables.

Answer:

The finance department will continue to prepare the letter of transmittal and the MD&A.
The Village has not produced the CAFR before and does not have the statistical tables to
update. This would be in the cost quoted to prepare the CAFR for the first time. The
Village will be requesting that the price quote for the statistical tables be a separate linc
item that the Village could choose to prepare in-house or include in a 3-year contract. The
Village wants the choice to implement the CAFR program or continue with preparing the
Annual Financial Statements (AFR). Form 1 on page 40 requests the complete price to
prepare a CAFR or AFR. We request that the cost to prepare the statistical tables be
quoted as an alternate to the price quoted for the CAFR. It must be very clear on the
pricing proposal.

Question 5:

What were the audit fees paid to the auditor for fiscal years ended September 30, 2013
and September 30, 2012?

Answer:

The fees are as follows: FY 2012 $33,500 and FY 2013 $34,500

Mayor Vice Mayor Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner
Connie Leon-Kreps Eddie Lim Dr. Richard Chervony Wendy Duvall Jorge Gonzalez



Question 6:

Were there additional services provided above and beyond the audit? If yes, how much
did the Village pay for these services and what was the nature of the services provided by
the external auditor?

Answer:

In FY 2013 the Village engaged the external auditor to update some schedules due to the
lack of availability of Village personnel for $6,347.

Question 7:

On page 23 of the RFP it states that the firm selected will make quarterly reports to the
Village at the regular scheduled Commission meetings including an update of the
Village’s finances, as well as the finance department’s progress meeting performance
measures for the current quarter and year. Since these aren’t audit services, should a
separate fee be provided? What are the performance measures as they are not delineated
in the RFP?

Answer:

The performance measures are on the Village website. The reporting to the Commission
will be a requirement of the external auditor to perform. The proposers may separate the
 pricing in their pricing structure, but it must be in the total price quoted.

Question §:

The proposal pricing sheet provided on page 40 of the RFP does not provide the
opportunity for the respondent to provide separate fees for Federal and Florida Single
audits which are separate services; it only requests for fees for a Single Audit Act Report.
Would the respondent be allowed to modify the schedule to allow for separate
identification and calculation of the proposed fee with the single audit services identified
separately?

Answer:

Yes as long as the pricing structure is very clear.

Question 9:

On page 43 in Form 3 it requests for professional references for each person that would
provide services under this RFP. Is the Village requesting references of the individuals or
would the references of the firm cover this request/requirement?
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Answer:
No. The references are to be for the personnel that will be assigned to the Village project.

We realize that personnel may change but the Village wants to know the qualifications of
the original personnel to be assigned to the project.

Question 10:

Can you provide a copy of last auditor’s contract?

Answer:

The contract is attached (Exhibit 1).

Question 11:

Can you provide a copy of the prior year audit report and tax return?
Answer:

The Audit Report is attached (Exhibit 2).

Question 12:

Were any management letter, comments send by your auditors?
Answer:

The Management letter is attached (Exhibit 3).

Question 13:

I see there is a bid bond of $2,500, so in order to submit a proposal we need to pay the
bid bond?

Answer:

Yes. The bid bond is required to be submitted with the response to the RFP.

Question 14:

Is there a local preference for auditors?
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Answer:

No.

Question 15:

How long have you been working with the current auditors?
Answer:

Four (4) years.

Question 16:

From a financial standpoint, what are your top three prioritiés?
Answer:

Financial Stability, Improved Services at minimal cost, and fully implement computer
conversion,

Question 17:

Please provide a copy of your most recent financials (balance sheet, income statement,
budget vs. actual) and any other relevant financial reports typically provided to the
manager. '

Answer;

Please see The Budget in Brief through March 31, 2014 (Exhibit 4)

Please return revised Addendum 1
Subject: Request for Proposals

PROOF OF RECEIPT

Recipient
Signature:
Print Name:
Firm:

Date:

SUBMIT WITH RFP RESPONSE
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North Bay Village

Administrative Offices

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300 North Bay Village, FL. 33141
Tel: (305) 766-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com

ADDENDUM NO. 1

Issued: May 8, 2014

Subject: Request for Proposals

RFP NBYV No. 2014-001
Financial Auditing Services

Notice to all proposers:

Issued by: North Bay Village

Question 1:
Has anything significant happened in the current year, which is different from prior years?

Answer:

The Village is implementing a new software system for Utility billing, cashiering, building
permits and business tax receipts. The Village will be converting the financial software in
October or November 2014. All components are a part of the Tyler Technology software system
INCODE.

Question 2.

Is something significant expected and/or budgeted to occur in the current year, or soon thereafter,
of which a potential auditor should be aware?

Answer:
Implementation of the new financial software in early FY 2015.

Question 3.

What qualities exhibited by the current auditors are valued the most? The least?

Answer:

VALUED MOST: The knowledge and professionalism of the full staff assigned to the Village,
as well as the responsiveness to questions and issues that come up.

LEAST: None
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Question 4:
Why are you contemplating changing auditors?

Answer:
The Village Commission adopted Resolution 2002-52 in 2002 limiting the auditor’s contract to
three (3) years.

Question 5.

Is the prior audit firm allowed to bid?

Answer:
They are not prohibited from responding to the public RFP.

Question 6.

What qualities would you like the new auditors to exhibit?

Answer:
VALUED MOST: The knowledge and professionalism of the full staff assigned to the Village as
well as the responsiveness to questions and issues that come up.

LEAST: None

Question 7:

What were the prior year auditing fees, and how were these fees allocated among various
services (i.e. financial statement audit, single audit, various other reports, etc.)

Answer;

Village Financial Statement - $34,500

(includes preparing the financial statements) Single Audit Federal Forfeiture (included in the
financial statement fee above)

Children’s Trust Grant $ 2,500
Miami GO Bond Compliance Report (included in the financial statement fee above)
Question 9:

Were there any additional accounting service fees?

Answer:
There were none.
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Question 10,

How many full-time and part-time audit staff members completed the prior year audit?
Answer:

Full time — None

Part time - 3

Question 11:

How many days/weeks were the prior auditors on site?

Answer:
Various as needed to complete the engagement services.

Question 12:

What were the audit fees for the past three years and was there an additional fee for
single audit, if any?

FY 2011 $32,500 Keefe McCullough

FY 2012 $33,500 Keefe McCullough

FY 2013 $34,500 Keefe McCullough
Question 13:

Is the Village requesting a CAFR for 2014 or a basic financial statement?

Answer:

The Village is considering producing the Annual Financial Statements that meet the
criteria of the GFOA’s CAFR Program. The Village is requesting prices for both. We
can compate the price for financial statements with the prices we have paid in the past
three (3) years, as well have a price to convert to the standards of the CAFR Program.
This would be the Village’s option.

Question 14:
Does it look like there will be a Single Audit in 2014?

Answer:
Yes, The Police Department has expenses over $500,000 in Federal Forfeiture Funds.

Mayor Vice Mayor ' Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner
Connie Leon-Kreps Eddie Lim Dr. Richard Chervony Wendy Duvall Jorge Gonzalez



Question 15:

What is the scope of services for item 6.9 on page 23 of the RFP? Is this an extra service
covered by the audit fee or for an additional amount?

Answer;

6.9 The firm selected will make Quarterly reports to the Village at a regular scheduled
Commission meeting. This report will include an update of the Village’s finances, as well
as an analysis of the finance department’s progress in meeting the performance measures
for the current quarter and year.

The Commission has requested that the auditors review the monthly financial statements
prepared by the finance department and advise the Commission of any points that they
want to make the Commission aware of, as well as review the finance departments
progress addressing the MD&A comments and performance measures or any other items
that the auditor feel the Commission should know about.

All questions regarding this RFP will be answered by May 14, 2014,

The RFP is due no later than May 16, 2014 at 3:00 p.m.

PROOF OF RECEIPT
Recipient
Signature:
Print Name:
Firm:
Date:
SUBMIT WITH RFP RESPONSE
Mayor Vice Mayor Comrhissioner | Commissioner Commissionér
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FORM 1
PROPOSAL PRICING SHEET

Provide a proposal containing a total price to perform the audit engagement as described in this request

for proposals. The total all-inclusive maximum price bid is to contain ail direct and indirect costs
including all out-of-pocket expenses. The selected vendor agrees not to exceed this amount.

2014 2015 2016 TOTAL
CAFR — w/o Statistical Tables | $ $ $ $
Statistical Tables $ $ $ $
Annual Financial Report $ $ $ $

The Village is requesting 3 price quotes to allow the ability to evaluate the cost to change reporting

formats.

Provide a separate price, only, for a Single Audit Act Report, if required.

2014 2015 2016
Single Audit Act $ $ $
State Required Special Audit $ $ $
TOTAL AUDIT FEE $ $ $
Children’s Trust* 2014 2015 _ 2016
TOTAL AUDIT FEE $ $ $
Any additional amount

2014 2015 2016
TOTAL AUDIT FEE $ $ $
Taxpayer Identification Number:
BIDDER:

(Company Name)

(Signature of Authorized Representative)

(Printed Name and Title)

*May not be required for all years, but required for FY 2014.

Page 40 of 64



Keefe, McCullough & Co. LLP

Certified Public Accountants

Dscember 22, 2010

Honorable Mayor and City Compnission Members
Cliy of Norih Bay Village

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 700

North Bay Village, FL 33141

Dear Mdyor Esquijorosa and Mempbers of the City Commilsslori:

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide the
City of North Bay Village (the “City") for the years ended September 30, 2010, 2011
and 2012. We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, each
maojor fund, and the aggregats remaining fupd information, which collactively
comprise the basic finoncial statements of the City as of ond for the years ended
September 30, 2010, 2011 and 2012, Accounting standards generailly dccepted In the
United States provide for certain required supplementary Information (RS}, such as
management's discussion and analysls (MD&A), to accompany the City's basic
financial statements. As part of our engagement, we will apply cerfain #imited
procedures o the Clty's RS, Thaese limited procedures wilt consist principally of inquides
of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation, which
mahagement Is responsibie for affirming to us In lis representation letter.  Unless we
encounter problems with the presentation of the RSl or with procedures relating to it
we will diselaim an opinion on it. The following RS is required by generclly accepted

aceounting principles and wili be sublected 1o ceartain limited procedures, but will not
be audited:

. Management's Discussion and Anclysis.
2. Budgetcry Basls Comparison Schedules

Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit Is the expression of oplnlons as to whether your basic
finoncial statements are faily presented, in all material respects, in conformity with
accouniing principles genérally accepted in the United Stales of America and fo
report on the falmess of the additional information referred to In the first paragraph
when considered in relation fo the basic financlal statements taken as a whole, Qur
audit will be conducted in accordance with generally accepied auditing standards
established by the Auditing Standards Boarg {United States) and the standards for.
financlal aqudis contgined In Government Auditing Standards, issued by the -
Comptroller General of the United States, and will include teésts of the accounting
records of the City and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us fo
express such opinions, If our oplnions on the financial statements are other than
ungualified, we will fully discuss the reasens with you in advance. if, for any reason, we
are unable to complete the audit of are unable to form or have rot formed opinions,
we may decline to exprass opinions or fo issue a report as a result of this engagement,
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City of North Bay Villoge 2 December 22, 2010

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on Infernal conirol
related fo the financtal statements and complionce with laws, regulafions, and the
provisions of contracts or grant agreerments, noncompliance withy which could have o
matericl effect on the financiol statements as required by Government Auditing
Standards. The report on internal confrol and complionce will include a statement
that the report is Intended solely for the information and use of management, the
.body or individuals charged with governance, others within the entity, and specific
legisiative of regulatory bodles and Is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties, If during our audlt we become aware that
the City Is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed In the terms of this
engagemsent, we will communicate to management and those charged with
governance that an qudit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied
in the United States of America and the standards for financlal oudits contalned in

CGovernment Audifing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or
confractual requirements,

]

Management Responsibilities

Management is responsible for the basic financial statements and all accompanying
information s well as all representations contained therein. As part of the audiit, we
will prepare a draft of your financlal statements and relafed nofes. You are
responsible for making oll management decisions and: performing alt management
functions relating fo the financial statements and related notes and.for accepling full
responsibility for such decisions. You will be required to acknowledge in the
management representation letter that you have reviewed ond approved the
financlal statements and related notes prior to thelr Issuance and have accepted
responsibillty for them. Further, you are required to designate an individual with
suitaible skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee any nonaudit services we provide

and for evaluating the adedquacy and results of those services and dccepting
responsibility for them.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal conirols, including
monitoting ongolng activities; for the selection and application of dccounting
principles; and for the falr preseniation in the financial statements of the respective
financlal position. of the governmental acliviies, each major fund, and the aggregate
‘rematning fund Information of the City and the respective changes in financial position

In conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
Americd,

Management s clso responsible for making ol financial records and related
information available to us and for the accurocy and completeness of that
information, Your responsibilifies in¢lude adjusting the financial statements to cotrect
material misstatements and for confirming o us in the representation letter that the
effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current
engagement and pertaining to the latest perlod presented are Immaterial, both
individually and In the aggregate, o the financial statemenis taken ¢s a whole,



City of North de Village -3- December 22, 2010

You dte responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls io
prevent and detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud
affecting the government involving (1) manageinent, (2) empioyees who have
significant roles in Intemal control, and (3) others where the fraud or llegal acts could
have o malerial effect on the financial statements.  Your responsibliiies include
informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud
affecting the government received In communications from employees, former
employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In ¢ddifion, you are responsible for
identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with applicable laws, reguictions,
contracts, agreements, and grants for faking timely and appropriaie steps fo remedy

any fraud, llegal acts, violations of confracts or grant agreeaments, or abuse thot we
may report.

Managemenit is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for fracking the
status of audit findings and recommendations. Management Is also responsible for
identifying for us previous audils or other engagements or studies related to the
oblectives discussed in the Audlt Objectives seclion of this letter, This responsibility
includes relaying to us cotrective actions taken to address significant findings and
recommendaiions resulling from those audiis or other engagements or studies. You
dre also tesponsible for providing mandgemeni's views on our current findings,
conclusions, and racommendations, os well as your planned comrrective actions.,

Audit Procedures—General

An audit Includes examining, on ¢ test basls, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financicl statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about
the number of fransactions o be examined and the areas 1o be tested. We will plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasongble rather than absolute assurance about
whether the financial stotemenis are free of material misstatement, whether from (1)
errors, (2} fraudulent fincincial reporfing, [3) misappropriation of assets, or {4) viclations
of laws or governmental regulations that are attrbutable to the entlty or to acls by
manggement or employees acting on behalf of the entity. Because the determination
of abuse is subjective, Govemnment Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to
provide regsonable assurance of detecting abuse.

Because an audit Is designed to provide reasonable, but not absoluie assurance and
because we will not perform o detalled examination of all fransactions, there is a risk
that material misstatements may éxist and not be detected by us. In addition, an
audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or viclations of laws or
governmenial regulations that do not have a direct and material sffect on the
finoncial statements. However, we will Inform you of any material errors and any
fraudulent financial reporiirig or misappropriation of assels that come to owr attention.,
We will allso inform you of any violaiions of laws or governmental regulations that come
1o our attention, unless cleardy inconsequantial. Our responsibility as auditors Is [imited

to the petiod covered by our audit and does not extend to later petiods for which we
are not engaged as auditors,



City of North Bay Village -4- December 22, 2010

Our procedures will Include tests of documentary evidence supporting the

transactions recorded In the accounts, and may include tests of the physical existence

of Inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain olher assets and

licbiifles by correspondence with selected individudls, funding sources, creditors, and

financial insfitutions. We will request wiitten repressntations from your attorneys as part

of the enga?emant and they may bilf you for responding to this inquiry. At the
o

conclusion of our audif, we will require certain written representations from you about
the financlal statements and related matters.

Audlt Procedures—interncl Confrols

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment,
including internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of matetial misstatement of the
financial statements and to design the naiure, timing, and extent of further gudit
procedures. Tesis of controls mcr be performed fo test the effectiveness of certaln
conirols that we consider relevarit 1o preventing and detfecting errors and fraud thot
are material to the finahcial statements and to preventing ond detecting
missiatements resuiting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have
a direct and material effect on the financial stotements, Our tests, if performed, will
e less in scope than would be necessary {0 rendet an opinion on internat control and,

accordingly, no oplnion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued
pursuant fo Govemment Auditing Standcards.

An audit is not designed 1o provide assurance on internal control or to identliy
significant  deficlencles. However, during the cudii, we will communicate fo
management and those charged with govermnance internal conirol related matters

that are required fo be communicated under AICPA professional standards and
Government Auditing Standards,

Audit Procedures~Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial siatements are
free of materlal misstatement, we will perform tests of the City's compliance with the
provisions of applicable laws, re@?ulaﬂ'ons, confracts, agreements, and  grants,
However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an oplnion on overdll
compliance and we will not express such ah opinion in our report on compliance
lssued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

Audit Administration, Fees and Ofher

We understand thai your employees will prepare all cash or other confirmations we
request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing. '

We will grovide copies of our reports 1o the City; however, management is responsibie
for distribution of the reports and the financlal statements. Unless restricted by law or

regulation, or containing privileged and confldential informatfion, copies of our reports
are 1o be made avallable for public inspaction,
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The audit documentation for this engagement is the properly of Keefe, McCullough &
Co., LLP ond constitutes confidentlal Information. However, pursuant fo authority
given by law or regulction, we may be requested fo make certain audit
documentation available fo the Auditor General or its designee, o federal agency
providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Govemment Accountabllity Office for
purposes of a quality review of the audit, 10 resolve qudi findings, or to carry out
oversight responsibilities. We will nofify you of any such request, if requested, dgccess to
such audit documeniation will be provided under the supervision of Keefe,
McCullough & Ceo., LLP personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide coples
of selected audit documentation to the aforemenfioned parties. These parties may
intend, or decide, to distibute the coples or information contalned therein to others,
including other governmental agencles,

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for o minimum of five
years after the report release date or for any additional perlod requested by the
Auditor General, If we are aware that a federal awarding agency or qudites s
contesting an audlt finding, we will contact ihe party(ies} contesting the cudiit finding
for guidaince prior to destroylng the audit documentation.

This agreement shall cover the duration of the award, including reviews for 2010, 2011

and 2012, Qur fees, as provided on the accompanying Schedule of Audlt Fees, shall
be $ 31,500 for 2010, $ 32,500 for 2011 and $ 33,500 for 2012, Qur invoices for these fees
will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable within thirly (30)

days of presentation, The above fee contemplates the fimely preparotion of various
wotkpapers, financial statement schedules and other data by your personnel and the
assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the gudit,
Alt work shall be completed according to the Schedule for Fiscal Years Audif provided
in Section Y - Time requirements of the Request for Proposals for Auditing Services.
Any delays shall immediately be brought to the attention of the City Manager. The
parties acknowledge that the 2010 audit will not be able to progress according to soid
fime frames, but that iimeis of the essence and the City and Keefe, McCuliough & Co.,
LLP will work fogether o complete the audit as quickly as possible,

Government Auditing Standards required that we provide you with a copy of our most
recent external peer review report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent
peer review reports and latters of comment received during the period of the contract.
OQur 2008 peer raview report accompanies this letter.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the Clly and believe this letter
accurately summarizes the significant tferms of our engagement. If you have any
questions, please let us know. If you agree with the ferms of our engagement as
described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us,

Very trulyjyours,

FE, McCULLOUGH & CO,, LLP

Willlam\G. Benson, C.P.A,
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RESPONSE:

This letter cotrectly sets forth the understanding of the City of North Boy Village.

Title: CZFT? NL%F”¥§@&
Date: L9/ 4{/ / /

ﬁ%ﬁp MM%

December 22, 2010

NE P. HAMILTON
ITY SLERK

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:
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THE CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
FOR THE ANNUAL AUDIT OF
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

Standard Quoted
Hourly Hourly Quoted
Hours Rote Rate ... .. _Fee
Partners 20 $ 220 - $ 375 $ 3,500
Managers 50 145 120 4,000
Supervisory starff 100 120 100 10,000
Senior accountant - 100 100 80 8,000
Staff 100 80 40 —..56.000
| Subtotal 370 33,500
Out-of-pocket expanses:
Report prinfing {25 copies) _ -
Discount to quoted fee —{2.000)
Totat all-nclusive maximum fess - Annual Audit $ 3500
Preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report {CAFR) - $ =
Single Audit % =

FOR THE AUDIT OF THE 2011 AND 2012 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We propose an anhucal increase of $§ 1,000 per year for years 2011 and 2012 of this
contract. '
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Abbott, Jordan (& Koon, LL.C
GERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTE
PO, By 800 13 405 Second Street © Manchester, GA 31818
1‘,?92.‘;:) ?ﬁv:gﬂ?ﬂugh & Co., LLP {708} B45-8401 O Pax (708) 848-8070

Wa have reviewad the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice
of Keefs, MceCuliough & Co., LLP (ihe firm) in effect for the year ended August 31, 2008,
A systemn of quality control encompassés the firm's orgariizational structure, the PDliﬂies
adopted and procadures establishad to provide it with reasonable assurance of conforming
with professiondl standards, The elemenits of quallty control are described in the
Statemenis on Quality Conirol Standards lssued by the Amerlcan Insiitute of Certified
Public Accountants (AICPA). The firm Is responsible for designing a syatem of quality
confro! and complying with it to provide the firm reasonable assurance of conforming with
professional standards in all materdal respacts. Our responsibility 1s to express an oplnlon

on the desigh of the system of quality controf and the firm's compliance with its system of
quality confrol baged on our raview,

Our review was cohducted in accordance with standards established by the Peey
Review Board of the AIGPA. During our review, we read required representations from the
firm, Inferviewad firm personnel and obtained an underetanding of the natirs of the firm's
accounting and audifing practice, and the design of the firm's system of quality control
sufiiclent to assess the risks Implicit in lis practice. Based on our mssgssments, we
salected engagéments and adminiatrative files fo test for conformily with professional
standards and compliance with the firm's system of quality control. The engagements
selected, represerited a reasonable cross-section of the fifm's accounting and auditing
practice with emphasis on highsrrsk engagements. The engagements selected Included
among others, audils of Employee Benefii Plans and engagements performied under
Government Auditing Stendards, Prior to concluding the review, we reassesseq the.
adeguacy of the scope of the peer review procedufes and met with firm management to

disougs the results of our review. We belleve that the procedures we perforined provide
a reasoﬁab!e basls for our opinion.

In performing our review, we obtained an undarstanding of the system of quality cantrol
Tor the firm'é accounting and audifing practice, Inaddition, we tested compliance with the
firm's quaiity conteol policles and procedures to the extent we considerad appropriate,
These tests covered the application of the firm's policies and procedures on selscted
engagements, Ourreviewwas based on selsttad tests therefore it would not necessarily
detect all weaknesses In the systemn of quality controf or all Instences of noncompliance
withi It There are Inherent limifations in the effactiyeness of any system of quality control
and tharefore noncompliance with the system of quelity contrdl may occur and not be
detected. Projection of any evaiualion of a systern of quallty controt fo future perivds is
subject to the yisk that the system of quallly control may become inadequate because of

changes In conditions, or because the dagres of compllance with the policiss or
procedures may deteﬂorate

HEMBERS OF
AVMERICAN INSTITUTE OF GERNIFIED PUBLIG AGGOUNTRNTB
GEORGIA SOCIETY OF CENTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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In our oplinlon, the system of quality controt for the accuunting and auditing pracxtice of
Keefe, McCullough 8 Co,, LLP In effect for the year ended August 31, 2008, has baen
desighed {o mestthe requlremants of the qualiy control standerds foran acnounﬂng and
audifing pracfics established by the AICPA and was eomplied with during the vear then

ended to provide the flrn with reascnabie assurance of conforming with professional
-standards,

&v%mw N

Manchester, Georgia
Colobar 20, 2008
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Admintstered | Fidids by ths Adiniatered tn Flordda byt

Florda Inetilufe of CPAs Florlda fretitits o!g
Bebroary 26, 2009

Joseph I, Lo, CPA.

Keefe, MeCullough & Co,, LLP
6550 19 Pederal Bwy,, Ste‘ 410
Fozt Lauderdale, FL 33308-1417

DearMr. Leo;

I is my pleasnre'ie notify you'that on February 28, 2009 the Florida Peer Raview
Committes nocspted the report on the most recent peer review of your firm, The due dats
for yowr next review is Febwmary 29, 2012, This is the date by which all review
dooumenis shiould be complefed and submitted to the administering entity. Since your

firm's due dats falls between Japuary and April, you may arrange fo have your review &
fovr months eariier to avoid having a review during tax seztox. .

Ag you know, the reviewer's opinion was utmodified. The Commitiee aaked me to
convey its congrataiations to the fitm.,

Sincerely,

7y

. Pav] N, Brown
Peer Review
Direstor of Technical Services

co: David C, Jordan, CPA

“Fimm Number: 10036786 Review Number: 271343

Ltior 10; 75470
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is proud fo present this

- Certificate of Recognition
te
KEEFE, MCCULLOUGH & COMPANY, LLP

Por having o system of quality control for its accounting und auditing practice in.effect for the year ended
August 31, 2008 which has been designed o meet the requirements of the quality control standards

Jor an aceounting and auditing practice established. by the AICPA and which wascomplied with during theyear _
1

then ended to provide the firm with reasonable cssurance of conforming with professional standards,

G:William Geaham, Chaér
4FCEA Peer Revlerg Board
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Keefe, McCullough & Co., LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the Village Commission
North Bay Village, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of North bay
Village, Florida, (the “Village”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013 and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material nisstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. ‘

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements, '

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

6550 N. Federal Highway = Suite 410 = Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 = 954.771.0896 % 954.938.9353 (F] 2 www.kmccpa.com
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Members of the Village Commission

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village, as of September 30, 2013, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
Members of the Village Commission _

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information and schedule of funding
progress, other post-employment benefits plan on pages 4-8 and 38-42, respectively, be presenied to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards gemerally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance. :

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Village’s, basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary comparison information, other financial
information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A- 133, Audits of
States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary comparison
information, other financial information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary comparison information, other financial information
and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.




Members of the Village Commission

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
31, 2014, on our consideration of the Village’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and -
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Village’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance,

Keepe, WMhe Cutlowh & Co, £ 47
KEEFE, McCULLOUGH & CO., LLP

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
March 31, 2014
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

As management of the North Bay Village, Florida (the "Village") we offer readers of the
accompanying financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of
the Village for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets of the North Bay Village exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $ 12,894,625 (net position). Governmental net position amounted to $ 3,945,420
and business-type net position amount to $ 8,949,205. Net position decreased by $ 389,616 during
the current fiscal year. -

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, the Village's governmental activities
revenues and expenses were $ 7,744,107 and $ 8,385,435 respectively. As a result, governmental
net position decreased by $ 641,328.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, the Village's business-type activities
revenues and expenses were § 4,829,633 and § 4,577,921 respectively. As a result, business-type
net position increased by $ 251,712,

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Village's basic
financial statements. The North Bay Village's basic financial statements comprise three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, 3) and notes to
the basic financial statements. This report also contains supplementary information in addition to
the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements - The government-wide financial statements, which
consist of the following two statements described below, were designed to provide readers with a
broad overview of the Village's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Village's assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Village is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Village's net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the North Bay
Village that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revemues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their
costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the
Village include general government, public safety, building, planning and zoning, public works,
parks and recreation, and interest on long-term debt. The business-type activities of the Village
include water, sanitation and sewer operations. The government-wide financial statements can be
found on pages 9 and 10 of this report.



NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Fund financial statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The North
Bay Village, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Village
can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and
outflows of spendable resources, as well as balances of spendable resources available at the end of
the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing
requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with
similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements, By doing so, readers may beiter understand the long-term impact of the Village's near-
term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and-changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

North Bay Village maintains four governmental fund types. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the capital projects
fund, the federal forfeiture fund and debt service fund, which are the only four funds considered to
be a major fund. All other special revenue funds and debt service fund have been combined and
are presented as non-major funds. '

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 11 through 14 of this
report. :

Proprietary funds - The North Bay Village maintains one type of proprietary fund referred
to as enterprise funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the government wide financial statements and are used to account for
water and sewer and stormwater operations. These inctude the Utility Fund and the Stormwater
Utility Fund. :

The proprietary fund provides the same type of information as the government-wide
financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide
. separate information for the water and sewer and stormwater operations, which are considered to
be major funds of the North Bay Village. The proprietary fund financial statements can be found
on pages 15 through 18 of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements - The notes provide additional information that is
essential for a full understanding of the data provided in the governmeni-wide and fund financial
statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 19 through 37 of this
report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position over time may serve as a useful indicator of the Village's
financial position. In the case of the North Bay Village, total assets exceeded liabilities by
$ 12,894,625 at the close of September 30, 2013. Governmental activities net position totaled
$ 3,945,420, and business-type activities net position totaled $ 8,949,205. The following table
presents a condensed statement of net assets as compared to the prior year.



NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Current and other assets $ 4305089 $ 5367284 $ 1,141,304 § 906,657 $ 5,446,393 3 6,273,941
Restricted assets - - 486,728 461,875 486,728 461,875
Capital assets, net 9,459,614 0,213,914 9,801,769 9,949,101 19,261,383 19,163,015
Total assets 13,764,703 14,581,198 11,429,801 11,317,633 25,194,504 25,898,831
Current and
other liabilities 802,216 477,581 847,057 772,639 1,649,273 1,250,220
Long term liabilities 9,017,067 9,401,433 1,633,539 1,845,001 10,650,606 11,246,434
Total liabilities 9,819,283 9,879,014 2,480,596 2,617,640 12,299,879 12,496,654
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 1,915,328 2,675,129 8,316,098 8,261,570 10,231,426 10,936,699
Restricted 2,159,112 1,533,377 - - 2,159,112 1,533,377
Unrestricted (deficit) (129,020 493,678 633,107 438,423 504,087 932,101
Total net position $_ 39045420 § 4,702,184 $__ 8949205 $ _ 8699993 $ 12,894,625  $ _ 13,402,177

Unrestricted net deficit totaled $ 129,020 at September 30, 2013.

The largest portion of the Village's net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, vehicles, etc.).

The North Bay Village uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, they are not available for future spending. An additional portion of the Village's net
position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.

The remaining balance of unrestricted net position may be used to meet the Village's ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of September 30, 2013, the North Bay Village is able to report positive balances
in all two categories of net position, both for the Village as a whole, as well as for its separate

governmental and business-type activities. Total net position decreased by $ 389,616 during the
current fiscal year. _

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Revenues:
Program revermes:
Charges for services POo1084524 3 1464618 § 4829619 § 4,600,001 § 594,143 $ 6,064,619
Operating grants
ang contribations 411,205 441,042 - - 411,205 441,042
Capital grants
and contributions 196,099 279,035 - 122,542 196,099 401,577
General revenues:
Property taxes 3,809,173 3,948,913 - - 3,809,173 3,948,913
Other taxes and fees 2,002,621 1,935,239 - - 2,002,621 1,935,239
Other general revenues 24(},485 222,894 14 924 240,499 223,818
Total revenues 7,744,107 8,291,741 4,829,633 4,723,467 12,573,740 13,015,208




NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Expenses:

General government 2,259,244 1,829,411 - - 2,259,244 1,829,411
Public safety 4,348,783 4,138,772 - - 4,348,783 4,138,772
Building, planning, -

and zoning 429,095 211,375 - - 429,095 211,375
Public works 685,040 388,680 - - 685,040 588,680
Parks and recreation 376,206 200,319 - - 376,206 200,319
Interest on long term debt 287,067 316,958 - - 287,067 316,958
Loss on disposition of

capital assets - 250,287 - - - 250,287
Utility - - 4,463,577 4,450,352 4,463,577 4,450,352
Siormwater utility - - 114,344 80,972 114,344 80,972 -
Total expenses 8,385,435 7,535,802 4,577,921 4,531,324 12,963,356 12,067,126
Increase in net positions

before transfers (641,328) 755,939 251,712 192,143 (389,616) 948,082
Transfers - - - 7 - - -
Increase {decrease) :

in net positions (641,328) 755,939 251,712 192,143 (389,616) 948,082
Net position, October 1 4,586,748 3,946,245 8,697,493 8,507,850 13,284,241 12,454,095
Net position,

September 30 $_ 3945430 $§_ 4702184 $ 8949205 $  B,609993 $ 12894625 $ 13,402,177

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE’S FUNDS

Governmental funds - The focus of the North Bay Village's governmental funds is to
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the Village's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the Village's net resources available for spending at
the end of the fiscal year. ‘

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Village. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $ 385,411. As a measure of the general
fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance
to total fund expenditures. Assigned fund balance of $1,066,063, represents approximately 20% of
total general fund budgeted expenditures.

The fund balance of the Village's general fund in the fund financial statements decreased
by $ 642,648 during the current fiscal year.

. As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Village's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $ 3,602,304, a decrease of $ 1,266,757 from the prior year.
Approximately $ 385,411 constitutes unassigned general fund balance. The remainder of fund
balance is deemed assigned, nonspendable, restricted or assigned to indicate it is not available for
new spending because it has already been categorized for a variety of purposes, such as future
spending or debt service requirements; or because it is to be used solely for specific fund related
expenditures.

Proprietary Funds - The Village's proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Net position of the
proprietary funds at the end of the year amounted to $ 8,949,205, Combining financial statements
of the proprietary funds can be found in pages 15 through 18 of the financial statements.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets - The Village's capital assets, less accumulated depreciation, for its
governmental and business-type activities as of September 30, 2013 amounted to $ 9,459,614 and
$ 9,801,769 respectively, and consist of land, construction in progress, buildings and
improvements, improvements other than buildings, vehicles, and machinery and equipment. A
more detailed schedule can be found on page 28 and 29 of the notes to the financial statements.

Debt - Excluding compensated absences and the OPEB liability, the Village's debt totaled
$ 9,029,957 at September 30, 2013. Total debt outstanding, excluding compensated absences, at
the end of the prior fiscal year was $ 9,619,674, The decrease of $ 589,717 is attributable to the
payment of debt incurred in the current year. More information regarding the Village’s debt can
be found on page 30 through 32 of the notes to the financial statements. Outstanding debt as of
September 30, 2013 and 2012 consisted of the following:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Long-term debt:
note, Series 2010 5 1,954,286 2,057,143 3 - 3 - $ 1,954,285 2,057,143
General obligation refunding
note, Series 2010 5,590,000 $ 5,875,000 - - 5,590,000 $ 5,875,000
Generzl obligation
Revolving state [nans - - 1,485,671 1,687,531 1,485,671 1,687,531
Compensated absences 1,404,781 1,435,290 147,868 157,470 1,552,649 1,592,760
OPEB liabitity 68,000 34,000 ~ - 68,000 34,000
Total $ 9,017,067 $ 9401433 $ 1633539 $ _ 1,845001 $ 10,650,606 5 11,246,434

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

« Budget amendments totaling $949,393 were necessary to account for unforeseen capital and
operating expenditures.

. Geheral fund revenues were $ 434,055 lower than the final budget.

e General Fund expenditures were higher than the final budget by $ 297,544. The most
significant excess related to unanticipated capital expenditures of the Village.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The North Bay Village's main source of revenues are obtained from a combination of tax
receipts from ad valorem property taxes, state revenue sharing and other taxes, franchise fees, and
receipts from building permit fees. The budget for fiscal year 2014 is based on the Village's best
expectations of revenues from these sources and other smaller sources, and expenses are based on
historical data and known increases for the 2014 fiscal year.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the North Bay Village's
finances for all those with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Village
Manager, North Bay Village, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300, North Bay Village, FL, 33141.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2013

Business-
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS:
Pooled cash, cash equivalents
and investments $ 3,773,652 715,208 $ 4,488,860
Receivables, net 531,437 426,096 957,533
Restricted cash - 486,728 486,728
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 5,203,406 - 5,203,406
Depreciable, net 4,256,208 9,801,769 14,057,977
Total assets 13,764,703 11,429,801 25,194,504
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 588,877 471,754 1,060,631
Accrued liabilities 113,908 19,239 133,147
Customer deposits - 356,064 356,064
Accrued interest payable 99 431 - 99 431
Due within one year:;
Compensated absences payable 234,130 24,645 258,775
Debt 392,857 195,740 588,597
Due in more than one year:
Compensated absences payable 1,170,651 123,223 1,293,874
Debt 7,151,429 1,289,931 8,441,360
OPEB obligation 68,000 - 68,000
Total liabilities 9,819,283 2,480,596 12,299,879
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 1,915,328 8,316,098 10,231,426
Restricted for:
Infrastructure and transportation projects 1,344,594 - 1,344,594
Law enforcement 487,336 - 487,336
Culture and recreation 274,953 - 274,953
Debt service 52,229 - 52,229
Unrestricted net position (deficit) (129,020) 633,107 504,087
Total net position $ 3,945,420 8,949,205 $ 12,894,625

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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ASSETS:
Pooled cash, cash
equivalents and

investments $

Receivables
Due from other funds

Total assets $

LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $

Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Capital projects
Transportation projects
Law enforcement
Culture and recreation
Debt service
Asgigned to:
Operating reserves
Unassigned (Deficit)

Total fund
balances

Total liabilities
and fund
balances 5

NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2013 .

Capital Federal Debt Nonmajor Total
General Projects Forfeiture Service Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
1,492,328 $ 998,035 3 440,617 $ 52,229 3 790,443 $ 3,773,652
333,814 122,375 - - 75.248 531,437
40,795 192,394 - - 19,038 252,227
1,866,937 3 1,312,804 $ 440,617 $ 52,229 $ 884,729 $ 4,557,316
307,001 3 271,518 $ 5,228 $ - $ 5,130 3 588,877
108,462 - 2,790 - 2,656 113,908
- - 19,038 - 233,189 252,227
415,463 271,518 27,056 - 240,975 955,012
- 1,041,286 - - - 1,041,286
- - - - 303,308 303,308
- - 413,561 - 73,775 487,336
- - - - . 274,953 274,953
- - - 52,229 - 52,229
1,066,063 - - - - 1,066,063
385,411 - - - (8,282) 377,129
1,451,474 1,041,286 413,561 52,229 043,754 3,602,304
1,866,937 $ 1,312,804 $ 440,617 $ 52,229 $ 884,729 $ 4,557,316

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION THE OF BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2013

TOTAL FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
IN THE BALANCE SHEET $ 3,602,304

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported

in the funds:
Governmental capital assets $ 13,092,028
Less accumulated depreciation (3,632,414) 9,459,614

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental

funds:
Bonds payable $ (7,544,286)
Compensated absences (1,404,781)
Accrued interest payable (99,431)
Other post employment benefit obligation (OPEB) (68,000) (9,116,498)
NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 3,945,420

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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REVENUES:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Franchise fees
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Interest income
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Building, planning
and zoning
Parks and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency)
of revenues
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in
fund balance

FUND BALANCES,
beginning of year

FUND BALANCES
end of year

NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the year ended September 30, 2013

Capital Federal Debt Nonmajor Total
General Projects Forfeiture Service Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 3,571,203 $ - 3 - $ 746,657 3 261,476 3 4,579,336
441,841 - - - - 441,841
392,198 - - - - 392,198
1,137,984 196,009 - - 113,481 1,447,564
64,151 - - - - 64,151
349,991 - 202,041 - 26,500 578,532
30,551 2,554 3,910 - 53 37,068
172,951 - 11,388 - 19,038 203,417
6,160,910 198,653 217,339 746,657 420,548 7,744,107
-2,039,426 - - - - 2,039,426
3,698,355 - 515,062 - 997 4,214,414
315,453 - - - 78,769 394,222
389,832 - - - - 389,832
224,911 - - - 129,482 354,393
60,395 705,114 12,894 - 169,887 948,290
- - - 387,857 - 387,857
- - - 282,430 - 282,430
6,728,372 705,114 527,956 470,287 379,135 9,010,864
(567,462) (506,461) (310,617 76,370 41,413 {1,266,75T)
- 269,825 - - 75,186 345,011
(75,186) - - - (269,825) (345,011)
{75,186) 269,825 - - (194,639) :
(642,648) (236,636) (310,617 76,370 (153,226) (1,266,757)
2,094,122 1,277,922 724,178 24,141y 796,980 4,869,061
$ 1,451,474 3 1,041,286 $ 413,561 $ 643,754 3 3,602,304

52,229 $

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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. NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS '
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ (1,266,757)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those
assets is depreciated over their estimated useful lives:

Expenditures for capital assets 681,959
Less current year provision for depreciation (436,259)

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long term
liabilities in the statement of net assets. 387,857

Certain items reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore
are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds:

Change in accrued interest payable $ (4,637)
Change in long-term compensated absences 30,509
Change in other post employment
benefit obligation (OPEB) (34,000
(8,128)
CHANGES IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES $ (641,328)

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
September 30, 2013

Business-Type Activities

Enterprise Funds
Major Nonmajor
Fund Fund
o Stormwater
Utility Utility
Fund Fund Total
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Pooled cash, cash equivalents
and investments $ 378,354 § 336,854 % 715,208
Restricted cash : 486,728 - 486,728
Customer accounts receivable 417,084 9,012 426,096
Due from other funds ' - 145,838 _ 145,838
Total current assets 1,282,166 491,704 1,773,870
Noncurrent assets: |
Capital assets:
Depreciable, net 9,418,453 383,316 9,801,769
Total assets $ 10,700,619 $ 875,020 $ 11,575,639
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 469,046 $ 2,708 § 471,754
Accrued liabilities 19,239 - 19,239
Due to other funds 145,838 - 145,838
Current portion of compensated
absences payable 24,645 - 24,645
Payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits 356,064 - 356,064
Current portion of debt 195,740 - 195,740
Total current liabilities 1,210,572 2,708 1,213,280
Long term liabilities:
Compensated absences payable 123,223 - 123,223
Debt 1,289,931 - 1,289,931
Total long-term liabilities 1,413,154 - 1,413,154
Total liabilities 2,623,726 2,708 2,626,434
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 7,932,782 383,316 8,316,098
Operating reserves 144,111 - 144,111
Unrestricted net position ‘ - 488 996 488,996
Total net position 8,076,893 872,312 8,949 205

Total liabilities and net position $ 10,700,619 $ . 875020 $ 11,575,639

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements,
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the year ended September 30, 2013

OPERATING REVENUES:
Sanitation charges
Sewer charges
Metered water charges
Service fees and late penalties
Stormwater user fees

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Payroll and related expenses
Sewage disposal fees
Materials, supplies, repairs and other
Water purchases
Solid waste disposal and recycling services
Provision for uncollected accounts receivable
Provision for depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
Operating income

NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES):
Interest income
Interest expense

Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses)
Change in net assets
NET POSITION, beginning of year
NET POSITION, end of year

$

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Major Nonmajor
Fund Fund
Stormwater
Utility Utility
Fund Fund Total
1,513,949 § - 1,513,949
1,546,163 - 1,546,163
1,539,097 - 1,539,097
108,805 16,671 125,476
- 104,934 104,934
4,708,014 121,605 4,829,619
1,340,625 24,000 1,364,625
960,351 - 960,351
662,108 16,413 678,521
629,434 - 629,434
399,122 - 399,122
77,019 24,387 101,406
357,785 49,544 407,329
- 4,426,444 114,344 4,540),788
281,570 7,261 288,831
14 - 14
(37,133) - (37,133)
(37,119) - (37,119)
244,451 7,261 251,712
7,832,442 865,051 8,697,493
8,076,893 § 872,312 8,949,205

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.



NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the year ended September 30, 2013

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Major Nonmajor
Fund Fund
Stormwater
Utility Utility
Fund Fund Total
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES: .
Receipts from customers and users $ 4,678,498 % 133,845 $ 4,812,343
Payments to employees (1,348,956) - (24,000) (1,372,956)
Payments to suppliers (2,667,890) (38,092) (2,705,982)
Net cash provided by
operating activities 661,652 71,753 733,405
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND ‘
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: _
Acquisition of capital assets (259,997) - (259,997)
Proceeds from capital grants 395,870 - 395,870
Transfers to other funds (826,886) (145,838) (972,724)
Repayments of revolving state loans (201,860) - (201,860)
Interest and other charges (37,133) - (37,133)
Net cash used in capital and related _
financing activities (930,006) {145,838) (1,075,844)
CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received 14 - 14
Net cash provided by
investing activities 14 - 14
Net increase (decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents (268,340) (74,085) (342,425)
POOLED CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND INVESTMENTS, beginning 1,133,422 410,939 1,544,361
POOLED CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND INVESTMENTS, ending $ 865,082 % 336,854 $_ 1,201,936
POOLED CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND INVESTMENTS REPORTED ON
THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION:
Pooled cash, cash equivalents and invesiments $ 378,354 § 336,854 % 715,208
Restricted cash 486,728 - 486,728
$ 865,082 § 336,854 $ 1,201,936

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements,
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
(continued)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Business-type Activities

Enterprise Funds
Major Nonmajor
Fund Fund
Stormwater
Utility Utility
Fund Fund Total

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING

INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED

BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income

$ 281,570 $ 7,261 § 288,831
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE
OPERATING INCOME TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Provision for depreciation 357,785 49 544 407,329
Provision for bad debt 77,019 24,387 101,406
Increase in Receivables (116,830) (12,147) (128,977)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 60,144 2,708 62,852
Accrued liabilities 1,271 - 1,271
Customer deposits 10,295 - 10,295
Compensated absences (9.602) - (9.602)
Total adjustments 380,082 64,492 444 574
Net cash provided by
operating activities $ 661652 % 71,753  $ 733,405

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the North Bay Village, Florida (the "Village") have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The more significant accounting policies of the Village are described
below.

The Village is located in Miami-Dade County, Florida and was incorporated in 1945 as a
municipality under the laws of the State of Florida. The Village operates under the Commission-
Manager form of government, with the legislative function vested in a five member Village
Commission. The Village provides the following services as authorized by its charter: general
government, public safety, water and sewer, sanitation, public works, planning and zoning,
building inspection, code enforcement, health and social services, culture and recreation.

Reporting Entity:

In accordance with GASB pronouncements, the Village's financial statements include all
funds, departments, agencies, boards, and other organizations over which Village officials are
considered to be financially accountable.

Financial accountability includes such aspects as appointment of a component unit's
governing body members, budget review, approval of property tax levies, outstanding debt
secured by the full faith credit of the Village or its revenue stream, and responsibility for funding
deficits.

In evaluating how to define the government, for financial reporting purposes, management
has considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit
in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Based upon the application of these criteria, the Village has no funds, agencies,
boards, commissions and authorities considered potential component units.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements:

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Village. The
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or identifiable activity. Program revemues include 1) charges
to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or identifiable activity and 2) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Measurement Focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation:

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary
fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose the Village considers all revenues available if they are collected within
60 days after year end. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred as
required by accrual accounting, except for debt service expenditures and compensated absences,
which are recorded when payment is due. :

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered io be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due
within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the government.

The Village reports the following major governmental funds:
. General Fund - this is the Village's primary operating fund. It accounts for all

financial resources of the general government except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

. Capital Projects Fund - this fund accounts for the acquisition or construction of
various major capital projects.

. Federal Forfeitures Fund - this fund accounts for certain expenditures of legally
restricted fund received from government agencies.

° Debt Service Fund - this fund accounts for the collection and payment of debt.

The Village reports the following major proprietary fund:

. Utility Fund - used to account for the Village's water, sewer, stormwater and
sanitation utility system, which is financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises. The intent of the Village is that the costs (expenses
including depreciation) of providing services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The Village also has the option of following
subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to
this same limitation. The Village has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide fmancial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the Village's water
and sewer function and various other functions of the Village. Elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants
and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the Village's enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales
and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting these definitions are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Deposits and investments:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less when purchased. The Village's pooled cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and investments in money market funds. The
Village's investments include certificates of deposit and investments with the Local Government
Surplus Funds Trust Fund administered by the State Board of Administration.

All investments of the Village are recorded at fair value. For the purpose of the statement
of cash flows for the proprietary funds, cash equivalents mean short-term, highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Allowance for doubtful accounts:

The Village considers all amounts receivable in the governmental funds to be fully
collectible; consequently, no allowance for doubtful accounts was estimated.  An allowance of
$ 15,000 was deemed necessary for the proprietary funds. This amount is primarily past due
customer accounts and related penalties due as of September 30, 2013.

Interfund transactions:

As the Village does not have any lending/borrowing arrangements between funds, all
outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds". All amounts
receivable from or payable to other funds are to be settled with expendable, available financial
resources. Transactions which are recurring annual transfers between two or more funds are
recorded as transfers in and out. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
"internal balances."
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA -
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Restricted assets:

Certain resources set aside for the repayment of certain debt are classified as restricted
assets on the statements of net assets or the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable
loan covenants. Additionally, some monies received are restricted for specific uses and the
Village reports amounts paid by customers for water and sewer deposits as restricted assets.

Capital assets:

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, improvements other than
buildings, machinery and equipment, vehicles, and infrastructure assets (e.g., sidewalks and other
similar items grouped within buildings and improvements and improvements other than buildings),
are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $ 750 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported
by governmental activities) the Village chose not to include such items until after the
implementation of GASB 34 in fiscal year 2004. As the government constructs or acquires
additional capital assets each period, including infrastructure assets after 2004, they are capitalized
and reported at historical cost. The reported value excludes normal maintenance and repairs
which are essentially amounts spent in relation to capital assets that do not increase the capacity or
efficiency of the item or extend its useful life beyond the original estimate. In the case of
donations, the government values these capital assets at the estimated fair value of the item at the
“date of its donation.

~ Capital assets of the Village are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Improvements other than building 30-40 years
Buildings 10-30 years
Vehicles 5 years
Machinery and equipment ' 3-5 years
Equipment and vehicles 3-5 years

Compensated absences:

Village employees are granted vacation, sick and compensatory leave in varying amounts
based on length of service. Upon separation in good standing, employees receive full
reimbursement for accumulated vacation and compensatory hours, as well as reimbursement for
sick hours if the required length of service is met. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in
the government-wide and proprietary funds and reported as a liability. The current portion of this
obligation is estimated based on historical trends. Compensated absences that are expected to be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported as expenditures and a fund
liability of the applicable governmental fund. '
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Long-term obligations:

In the governmeni-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in
the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or propriety fund type statement of
net assets. Bond discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond discounts. Bond issuance
costs, if any, are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. In
the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported

as other financing sources. Payments of principal and interest are reported as debt service
expenditures,

Net Position/fund balance:

In the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net position and is
displayed in three components:

a Net investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvements of those assets.

b. Restricted net position - consists of net positions with constraints placed on the use
either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and

regulations of other governments, or 2) law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

c. Unrestricted net position - all other net positions that do not meet the definition of
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets. "

Fund balance:

The Village follows GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions which requires that governmental fund financial statements present fund
balances based on classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to
which the Village is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the
respective governmental funds can be spent.

The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cammot be spent because
they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required
to be maintained intact. “Not in spendable form” includes items that are not
expected to be converted to cash (such as inventories and prepaid amounts) and
items such as long-term amount of loans and notes receivable, as well as property
acquired for resale. The corpus (or principal) of a permanent fund is an example of
an amount that is legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been
placed on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as
through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Village
Commission. These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
Commission removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action
(ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were initially
committed. Resources accumulated pursuant to stabilization arrangements
sometimes are reported in this category.

Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the Village’s
intent to be used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed.
This intent can be expressed by the Commission or through the Commission
delegating this responsibility to Village management. In addition, amounts deemed
by the Village ordinances as minimum fund balance requirements are included in
this category. Section 35.22 of the Village Code of Ordinances requires an
operating reserve of 20%. This amount has been classified as assigned operating
reserves in the accompanying financial statements. '

Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General
Fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other
funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes
within the General Fund. Unassigned fund balance may also include negative
balances for any governmental fund if expenditures exceed amounts restricted,
committed or assigned for those specific purposes.

During the year one of the Village’s funds disclosed a deficit fund balance. The Children
Services Fund had a deficit fund balance of $ 8,282 which is to be covered by the General fund
and absorbed through transfers in order to cure this reported deficit.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management's knowledge of current
events and actions it may undertake in the future, actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates. '

Date of management review:

Subsequent events were evaluated by management through March 31, 2014, which is the
date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY TAXES

Under- Florida Law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county,
municipal and school board property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County Property
Appraiser and County Tax Collector. The laws of the State regulating tax assessments are also
designed to assure a conmsistent property valuation method statewide. State statutes permit
municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10.0 mills. The tax rate to finance general
governmental services for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 was $ 6.5145 per $ 1,000 of
assessed taxable property value. The rate of $ 6.5145 is allocated to the general fund and debt
service fund, with the general fund receiving $ 5.4740, the debt service fund $ 1.0405.

The tax levy of the Village is established by the Village Commission prior to October 1
each year, and the County Property Appraiser incorporates the millage into the total tax levy,
which includes Miami-Dade County, Miami-Dade County School Board and various special taxing
districts. All property is reassessed according to its fair market value as of January 1 each year, at
which time taxes become an enforceable lien on property. Each assessment roll is submitted to the
Executive Director of the State Department of Revenue for review to determine if the roll meets
all of the appropriate requirements of State statutes. State of Florida Amendment #10 to the
Florida Constitution known as "Save our Homes" limits assessment increases on homestead
property to the lesser of 3% or the Consumer Price Index.

All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1 each year
or as soon as practicable thereafter as the assessment roll is certified by the County Property
Appraiser. Miami-Dade County mails to each property owner on the assessment roll a notice of
the taxes due and Miami-Dade County also collects the taxes for the Village. Taxes may be paid
upon receipt of such notice from Miami-Dade County, with discounts at the rate of four percent
(4%) if paid in the month of November, three percent (3%) if paid in the month of December, two
percent (2%) if paid in the month of January and one percent (1%) if paid in the month of
February. Taxes paid during the month of March are without discount, and all unpaid taxes on
real and tangible personal property become delinquent and liens are placed on April 1 of the year
following the year in which taxes were assessed. Procedures for the collection of delinquent taxes
by Miami-Dade County are provided for in the laws of Florida, State law provides for
enforcement of collection of personal property taxes by seizure of the property, by the sale of the
property, or by the sale of interest bearing tax certificates to satisfy unpaid property taxes. The
procedures result in the collection of essentially all taxes prior to July 31 of the year following the
year of assessment.

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits:

In addition to insurance provided by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation,
deposits which consist of cash on hand and interest bearing checking accounts are held in banking
institutions approved by the State Treasurer of the State of Florida to hold public funds. Under
Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Deposits Act, the State Treasurer
requires all Florida qualified public depositories to deposit with the Treasurer or another banking
institution eligible collateral. In the event of a failure of a qualified public depository, the
remaining public depositories would be responsible for covering any resulting losses. Therefore,
all amounts presented as deposits are insured or collateralized.

235



NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
Restricted cash:

Restricted cash consists of $ 356,064 of customer deposits held in the Utility Fund. These
funds are owed back to customers when the discontinue service. Additionally, $ 130,664 is
required to be held in a depository account in accordance with the Village’s State Revolving Fund
loans (Note 7).

Investments;

As required by Florida Statutes, the Village has adopted an investment policy designating
the investments which are allowable of its cash management activities. The authorized investments
include US bonds and obligations, fully insured or collateralized certificates of deposit, Securities
and Exchange Commission ("SEC") registered money market funds, bankers acceptances, reverse
repurchase agreements, local government investment pools and certain mutual funds registered
with the SEC and the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (administered by the State of
Florida Board of Administration). The investments follow the investment rules defined in Florida
Statutes Chapter 215. The investment policy defined in the statutes attempts to promote, through
state assistance, the maximization of net interest earnings on invested surplus funds of local units
of governments while limiting the risk to which the funds are exposed.

The Village is authorized to invest in obligations of the United States Treasury, its
agencies, instrumentalities and the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund administered by
the State Board of Administration. The investments follow the investment rules defined in Florida
Statutes Chapter 215. The investment policy defined in the statutes attempts to promote, through
state assistance, the maximization of net investment earnings on invested surplus funds of local
units of governments while limiting the risk to which the funds are exposed.

The Village invests surplus funds in an external investment pool, the Local Government
Surplus Funds Trust Fund (the “State Pool”). The State Pool is administered by the Florida State
Board of Administration (“SBA”), who provides regulatory oversight. The SBA previously
reported that the State Pool was exposed to potential risks due to indirect exposure in the subprime
mortgage financial market. Consequently, the SBA placed some restrictions on how participants
could access portions of their surplus funds and ultimately restructured the State Pool into two
separate pools (“Florida PRIME” and “Fund B”).

The Florida PRIME has adopted operating procedures consistent with the requirement for a
2a7-like fund. The Village's investment in the Florida PRIME is reported at amortized cost. The
fair value of the position in the pool is equal to the value of the pool shares.

The Fund B is reported at fair value, determined by the fair value per share of the pool's
underlying portfolio.

As of September 30, 2013, the Village had the following investments:

Investment
Fair Maturities
Value (in years)
Florida Prime $ 49,249 Less than 1
Fund B 10,598 6-10

$ 59.847
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NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continned)

Interest rate risk;

The Village has an investment policy of structuring the investment portfolio so that the
securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to
sell securities on the open market prior to maturity and investing operating funds primarily in
short-term securities, money market mutual funds, or similar investment pools. The weighted
average maturity of the securities held in Florida Prime is 44 days. The weighted average life of
the securities held by Fund B is 4.04 years. However, because Fund B consists of restructured or
defaulted securities, there is considerable uncertainty regarding the weighted average life.

Credit risk:
The Village’s investment policy limits investments to the highest ratings issued by a

nationally recognized statistical rating organization (NRSRQ). The Florida PRIME is rated
AAAm by Standard and Poor’s; the Fund B is not rated by an NRSRO.

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

As of September 30, 2013, receivables for the Village’s individual major funds and
nonmajor fund, including applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

' Capital Non-major
General Projects Special Enterprise
Fund Fund Revenue Funds Funds . Total
Customers hilled 3 137,242 $ - $ - 5 426,096 $ 563,338
Intergovernmental 191,572 122,375 75,248 - 389,195
Miscellancous 5,000 - - - 5,000
$ 333,814 $ 122,375 $ 75,248 $ 426,096 $ 957,533

re——— eeee— e — | —— | e——

As of September 30, 2013 accounts payable for the Village’s individual major and non-
- major funds are as follows:

Capital Federal Non-major
General Projects Forfeiture Special Enterprise
Fund ' Fund Fund Revenue Funds Funds Total
Vendors $ 307,001 $ - 8 5,228 $ 5,130 3 27704 % 645,063
Contractors - 271,518 - - 144,050 415,568
L) 307,001 5 271,518 3 5,228 $ 5,130 3 471,754 $ 1,060,631

—— eee—— — e rr— . e——— " e————
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assét activity for the year ended September 30, 2013 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases - Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 5,138,008 $ - 3 - $ 5,138,008
Construction in progress - 65,398 - 65,398
Total capital assets, not
being-depreciated 5,138,008 65,398 - 5,203,406
Capital assets, being depreciated: .
Buildings and improvements 4,266,093 563,368 - 4,829,461
Vehicles 1,269,838 - - 1,269,838
Machinery and equipment 1,736,130 53,193 - 1,789,323
Total capital assets, .
being depreciated 7,272,061 616,561 - 7,888,622
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 855,195 254,732 - 1,109,927
Vehicles 801,840 125,487 _ - 927,327
Machinery and equipment 1,539,120 56,040 - 1,595,160
Total accumulated depreciation 3,196,155 436,259 - 3,632,414
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net . 4,075,906 180,302 ol 4,256,208
Governmental activities
capital assets, net ‘ $ 9,213,914 $ 245,700 $ - $ 9,459,614
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Construction in progress $ 67,220 $ - $ 67,220 $ -
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Improvements other
" than equipment 13,689,460 327,217 - ‘ 14,016,677
Equipment and vehicles 1,231,622 - - 1,231,622
Total capital assets . '
being depreciated 14,921,082 327,217 - 15,248,299
Less accumulated depreciation for: '
Improvements other
than equipment 3,812,999 399,097 - 4,212,096
Equipment and vehicles 1,226,202 8,232 - 1,234,434
Total accurnulated depreciation 5,039,201 407,329 - 5,446,530
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net - 9,881,881 (80,112) . _- 9,801,769
Business-type activities '
capital assets, net $ 9,949,101 5 (80,112) $ 67,220 $ 9,801,769
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Depreciation expense for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 was charged to

functions/programs as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government $ 196,317
Public safety 130,878 .
Public works 47,988
Parks and recreation 39,263
Building, planning and zoning 21,813
Total depreciation expense ~
governmental activities $ 436,259

Business-Type Activities:

Water and sewer systems $ 357,785
Stormwater Utility 49.544
Total depreciation expense -
business-type activities $ 407,329

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

These balances result from the time lag between the dates (1) Inter-fund goods and services
are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting
system, and (3) paymenis are actually made between funds. Due from and to other funds at
September 30, 2013 are summarized as follows: :

Due From
Federal Non major
Forfeiture Governmental Enterprise
Fund Funds Funds Total

Due To: :

General Fund $ - $ 40,795 $ - $ 40,795

Capital Projects Fund - 192,394 - 192,394
Nonmajor Governmental

Funds 19,038 - - 19,038

Enterprise Fund - - 145,838 145,838

Total $ 19,038 $ 233,189 $ 145,838 $ 398,065
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NOTE 6 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

Inter-fund transfers for the year ended September 30, 2013 are summarized as follows:

Interfund Balances
‘Fransfers Transfers
In Out

Transfer In:
General Fund $ - $ 75,186
Capital Projects Fund 269,825 -
Nonmajor Governmental Fund 75.186 269.825

3 345,011 5 345,011

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of changes in debt for the year ended September 30, 2013:

October 1, September 30, Due Within
2012 Additions Payments 2013 One Year
Governmental Activities:
General obligation note,
Series 2010 3 2,057,143 $ - $ 102,857 3 1,954,286 3 102,857
General obligation refunding 5,875,000 - 285,000 5,590,000 290,000
note, Series 2010
Compensated absences 1,435,290 743,566 774,075 1,404,781 234,130
OPEB obligation 34,000 34,000 - 68,000 -
Total governmental '
activities debt $ 9,401,433 3 777,566 3 1,161,932 3 9,017,067 3 626,987
Business-Type Activities:
Revolving state loans $ 1,687,531 $ - $ 201,860 $ 1,485,671 $ 195,740
Compensated absences 157,470 37,137 46,739 147,868 24,645
Total business-type
activitics debt $ 1,845,001 b 37,137 $ 248,599 $ 1,633,539 $ 220,385

Governmental activities:

In fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, the Village refinanced a $ 6,250,000 General
Obligation Note with the proceeds of a § 6,325,000 General Obligation Refunding Note. The
proceeds were used to legally defease the original note and to pay costs of the refinancing.
Commencing on December 1, 2010, interest of 3.51% is payable semiannually on December 1 and
June 1 through the maturity date of June 1, 2028. Principal shall be payable on an annual basis
commencing June 1, 2011. The outstanding principal as of September 30, 2013 is $ 5,590,000.

30



NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

In fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, the Village borrowed $ 2,160,000 relating to a
General Obligation Note, Series 2010 for purpose of financing all or a part of the costs of (i) the
creation and improvement of parks and recreational opportunities, (i) the construction of a Public
Safety and Village Hall complex, (jii) landscaping and aesthetic improvements.to the John F.
Kennedy Causeway, and (iv) related capital costs. The note is secured by the proceeds of ad
valorem taxes levied on all taxable property in the Village. Commencing December 1, 2011,
interest of 3.80% is payable semi-annually and principal is payable annually of $ 102,857 on
December 1 of each year through the maturity date of December 31, 2031. The outstanding
principal as of September 30, 2013 is $ 1,954,286. :

Business-type activities — revolving state loans:

The Village has five separate state revolving loan agreements with the Department of
Environmental Protection. The loans provided for funding for various sewer improvement projects
on a cost reimbursement basis. Pursuant to the terms of the individual agreements, the Village
began making semi-annual principal and interest payments on the loans one year subsequent to the
completion of the projects. The Village is required to pledge revenues equal to 1.15 times the
sums of the semi-annual payments due In any fiscal year, and must maintain an amount equal to or
greater than five-sixths of the semi-annual payment in a depository account. At September 30,
2013, the Village was in compliance with these covenants, The significant terms of the loans are as
follows:

Revolving state loan of $§ 282,370 dated March 17, 1995;
interest rate of 3.79%. As an amendment to the original loan,
in June 1997 the Village was awarded an additional
$ 1,597,000 at an interest rate of 2.7%. The Village makes
semi-annual principal and interest payments of $ 33,797 on
March 15 and September 15. The loan matures on September
15, 2018 and is collateralized by water and sewer revenues. $ 313,017

Revolving state loan of $ 755,000 dated July 17, 1996;
interest rate of 2.9%. The Village makes semi-annual
principal and interest payments of $ 23,507 on March 15 and
September 15. The loan matures on September 135, 2016 and
is collateralized by water and sewer revenues. 133,948

Revolving state loan of $ 380,000 dated September 30, 1993;
interest rate of 2.7%. As an amendment to the original loan,
in October 1994 the Village was awarded an additional
$ 188,000 at an interest rate of 3.24%. The Village makes
semi-annual principal and interest payments of $ 18,211 on
January 1 and July i. The loan matures on July 1, 2014 and
is collateralized by water and sewer revenues. 35,649

Revolving state loan of $ 1,079,032 dated December 24,
2009; interest rate of 1.9%. The amounts of the semiannual
payments for each loan will be calculated based on the actual
amount of the principal drawn under the agreement, as well
as associated capitalized interest and loan service fees.
Payments will be due semiannually November 15 and May
15 at a present amount of $ 32,929 with any final amounts to
be determined when project is complete. 992,367
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Revolving state loan of $ 352,416 dated July 1, 2011;
interest rate of 2.18%. The amounts of the semiarinual
payments for each loan will be calculated based on the actual
amount of the principal drawn under the agreements, as well
as associated capitalized interest and loan service fees.
Payments will be due semianmually February 15 and August
15 at a present amount of $ 11,136 with any final amounts to
be determined when project is complete. Be determined
when project is complete. 10,690

1,485,671

$—.—%

Combined aggregate maturities for all long-term debt for each of the next five years and to
maturity are as follows:

Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
September 30. Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
204 § 392,857 3 268,518 $ 661,375 $ 195,740 5 31,955 $ 227,695
2015 402,857 254,430 657,287 153,304 27,161 180,465
2016 412,857 239,991 652,848 157,314 23,151 180,465
207 422 857 225,202 648,059 114,067 19,384 133,451
2018 432,857 210,061 642,918 116,871 16,580 133,451
2019-2023 1,964,285 717,547 2,681,832 268,586 60,704 329,290
2024-2028 2,634,285 438,015 3,072,300 295,660 33,630 329,200
2029-2032 881,431 47,766 929,197 184,129 6,641 190,770

$ 7,544,286 3 2,401,530 $ 9,945,816 $ 1,485,671 $ 219,206 $ 1,704,877

NOTE 8 - FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The Village participates in the Florida Retirement System (the "System"), a multiple-
employer cost sharing Public Employee Retirement System ("PERS"). The Division of
Retirement, Department of Administration of the State of Florida administers the System. All
rates, benefits and amendments are established by the State of Florida through its legislative body.

Employees of the Village who are employed in a full-time regularly established position participate
in the System.

The System has various classes of memberships. Village employees fall under "Regular
Class," which consists of members of the System who do not qualify for membership in the
Special éRIisk, Special Risk Administrative Support, Elected Officer, or Senior Management
Service Classes.

Normal retirement for the Regular, Elected Officer, and Senior Management Service Class
is at age 62 or at 30 years of credited service, if initially enrolled before July 1, 2011 and age 65
or 33 years of credited service if initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, Normal retirement for
the Special Risk Class (police) is at age 55 or at 25 years of credited service if initially enrolled
before July 1, 2011 and age 60 or 30 years of credited service if initially enrolled on or after July
1, 2011. Service retirement benefits are computed on the basis of age and/or years of service,
avedrage final compensation (the average of the five highest fiscal years' earnings), and service
credit.

Benefits vest after six years of credited service. Early retirement may be taken any time
after vesting; however, there is a five percent benefit reduction for each year prior to normal
retirement age or date. The System also provides disability and survivor benefits. Benefits are
established by State statute.
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NOTE 8 - FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued)

Funding policy:

The Village is required by Florida statutes to contribute 5.18%, 6.30% and 14.9% of
salaries through June 2013 and starting July 2013 6.95%, 18.31% and 19.06% for regular, senior
management and special risk members, respectively. In addition to the employer contributions,
beginning July 2011, employees are required to contribute 3% of their salary towards the System.
Employees within 5 years of retirement may elect to participate in the Deferred Retirement Option
Program ("DROP"). The DROP allows an employee to retire while continuing employment, for a
maximum of 60 months, and defer their monthly retirement benefit to an interest-bearing account.
The Village is also required to contribute 5.44% and 12.84% of salaries for periods prior to and
subsequent July 1, 2013, respectively, for participants of the DROP. During 2013 the Village had
no employees participating in the DROP.

The contribution requirements of covered payroll and actual contributions made for the
fiscal year ending September 30, 2013 and the two preceding years were as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Contributions requirements $ 425,526 358,287 $ 528,832
Contributions made (100%) $ 425,526 358,287 $ 528,832
Total covered payroll $ 3,379,195 3,330,360 $ 3,198,341
Percent of contributions
to total covered payroil 12.59% 10.76 % 16.53%

NOTE 9 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

On September 15, 1998, the Village adopted Resolution No. 98-17 providing for a final
and total distribution of the defined benefit retirement system assets and termination of the Plan.
The Village terminated the Plan and rolled over all active employee balances into the 401(a)
defined contribution plan for general employees. All except seven of the Plan’s participants chose
to receive lump sum distributions for their retirement benefits. The seven participants opted to
continue to receive their monthly benefit payments. During 1999, the Village purchased annuity
contracts from an insurance company for those participants. '

The Village previously adopted a defined contribution plan in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 401 (a). In a prior year, the Village terminated its defined benefit plan
(Note IV-J-2) and the balances for all active employees were rolled over into the defined
contribution plan, The Plan provides a retirement program for all general employees. Covered
employees are eligible upon employment with the Village. The 401(a) Plan provides for required
employer i'md employee contributions of 13.5% and 5.5% of employee earnings for the Plan year,
respectively.

Employer contributions vest after three years of service through year seven based on the
participant's hire date. In addition, the Plan allows for loans of up to 50% of the participant's
vested balance. Plan amendments must be approved by the Village Commission. The Village
contributed approximately $ 41,000 for the year ended September 30, 2013. The Plan is held in
trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. Consequently, the Village
has no fiduciary responsibility; therefore, the net assets of the Plan are not included in the
Village's financial statements.
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NOTE 10 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
The Village implemented the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45,
Accounting and Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions
(OPEB), for certain postemployment health care benefits provided by the Village.

Plan Description:

North Bay Village, Florida administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan
(the “Plan”} that provides medical and dental insurance benefits to its employees and their eligible
dependents. In accordance with Section 112.0801 of the Florida Statutes, because the Village
provides a medical plan to active employees of the Village and their eligible dependents, the
Village is also required to provide retirees with the opportunity to participate in this Plan. The plan
has no assets and does not issue a separate financial report.

Funding Policy:

The Village is funding the post-employment benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. For the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, the annual required contribution was $ 42,000. The Village
made an implied contribution of § 6,000 towards this amount. At September 30, 2013, the Village
recorded a net OPEB obligation of $ 68,000 for governmental activities, in its government-wide
statement of net assets. : :

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation:

The annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the
annual required contribution (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liability over a period not to exceed 30 years. The following table shows the components of the
Village's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed, and the changes in the
net OPEB obligation,

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 42,000
Interest on net pension obligation 1,000
Adjustment to annmual required contribution (3,000
Total annual OPEB cost 40,000
Employer contributions made _ * {6,000)
Interest on employer obligation -
Increase in net OPEB obligation 34,000
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 34,000
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 68,000

*reflects a contribution credit for the implied subsidy.

The Village's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of anmual OPEB costs contributed to the
plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2013, (the first year of implementation) was as follows:

_ . Percentage
Annual - of Anmual '
Year Ending OPEB OPEB Cost Net OPEB
September 30, Cost Contributed Obligation
2013 $ 40,000 15.00% $ 68,000
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NOTE 10 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Funded status and progress:

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets
are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. An
analysis of funding progress (the last plan year valuation date) is as follows:

Actuarial
Accrued Unfunded
Liability Actuarial UAAL
Actarial Actuarial at Entry Accrued as % of
Valuation Value of Age Liability Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

10/01/12 3 - $ 261,000 § 261,000 6.0% Not available N/A

Methods and Assumptions:

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between
the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

In the October 1, 2012 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit cost method was used.
The annual required contribution (ARC) reflects a 15-year open period, level dollar payment
amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL). The actuarial assumptions
included a 4.0% investment rate of return, with 2.75% of this amount being attributed to inflation.
The actuarial assumptions also included an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8.00% for the
2012-2013 fiscal year, with future annual decreases to grade uniformly to 5.50% over a 5 year
period, to an ultimate rate of 5.00% for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019.

NOTE 11 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation:

The Village is involved in various litigations involving certain past employees and a vendor
construction contract. The Village is actively defending these matters but believes they could
result in negative outcomes. To the extent that the result of these procedures are considered
probable and can be reasonably estimated, the Village has recorded a contingent liability of
approximately $ 240,000.
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NOTE 11 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Risk management:

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, and natural disasters for which the Village carries
commercial insurance. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage
in the prior year and there were no settlements that exceeded insurance coverage for each of the
past three years. The Village provides employee medical benefits through commercial insurance
coverage.

Grants contingency:

The Village receives grants from governmental agencies that require compliance with
certain provisions stated in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by their grantor agencies.
Failure to comply with the provisions or the results of any grantor audit could result in the return
of funds and are subject to audit by their grantor agencies. Management of the Village deems the
likelihood of this contingency remote since, in its opinion, the Village has complied in all material
respects with the provisions of the grants.

Operating lease agreement:

The Village previously entered into an operating lease for the rental of an office facility for
a period of five years beginning January 2011 through January 2016. During the year ended
September 30, 2013, the Village terminated the lease and paid an early termination fee of $ 50,000
as required by the lease agreement. Total lease payments in connection with this lease amounted to
approximately $ 119,200 for the year ended September 30, 2013.

During the year ended September 30, 2013, the Village entered into a two year operating
lease for the rental of the Village city hall facility. This lease requires monthly payments of
approximately $ 15,800 through 2014 and $ 16,400, through 2015. This lease contains a renewal
option of a one year term at an increase of 4% over the prior year’s base rent. A second renewal
option for a one year term at the then prevailing market rate is also provided by this lease
agreement. Total payments in connection with this lease totaled approximately $ 72,500 for the
year ended September 30, 2013.

Future minimum lease payments for the remainder of the lease are approximately as
follows:

Year Ended
Sentember 30, Amount
2014 ' $ 191,000
2015 ' $ 147,500
Thereafter NONE
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013

NOTE 12 - RESTATEMENT OF BEGINNING NET POSITION

For the year ended September 30, 2013, the Village implemented GASB No. 65, ltems
Previously reported as Assets and Liabilities. This resulted in a decrease to the beginning net position
on the on the statement of revenue, expense and change in net position and on the statement of
activities for approximately $ 115,000 and $ 2,500 for governmental and business-type activities,
respectively, to remove bond issuance costs in accordance with GASB No. 65.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND -
For the year ended September 30, 2013

Original Final
Budget Budget "~ Actual Variance
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Property taxes, including
penalties and interest $ 2,887,033 $ 3,073,777 $ 3,062,516 $ (11,261)
Utility service taxes 430,000 508,687 508,687 -
Total taxes 3,317,033 3,582,464 3,571,203 (11,261)
Licenses and permits: ‘
Village occupational licenses 70,000 74,502 74,502 -
Building and other permits 171,200 168,934 367,339 198,405
Total licenses and permits 241,200 243,436 441,841 198,405
Franchise fees:
Electric ' 320,000 355,304 363,253 7,949
Gas 22,000 17,157 16,034 (1,123)
United States Postal Service 18,500 11,883 11,883 -
Sanitation 1,000 1,028 1,028 -
Total franchise fees 361,500 385,372 392,198 6,826
Intergovernmental: ‘
Local 1/2 cent sales tax 499,993 504,473 504,473 -
Communication service tax 306,049 288,083 288,083 ' -
State revenue sharing : 184,775 189,928 189,928 -
Alcohol beverage licenses : 6,500 5,531 5,531 -
Causeway maintenance 5,300 5,300 5,294 (6)
Local option gas tax 109,955 109,955 108,427 (1,528)
Federal grants - 41,248 36,248 (5,000)
Total intergovernmental 1,112,572 1,144,518 1,137,984 (6,534)
Charges for services:
Record research and review 40,000 55,267 55,267 -
Passport fees 7,000 4,300 4,300 -
Advertising/bus stop 2,400 4,584 4,584 -
Total charges for services 49,400 64,151 64,151 -
Fines and forfeitures 72,000 357,818 349,991 (7,827)
Interest income 10,000 30,551 30,551 -
Other:
Miscellaneous 64,500 176,540 172,991 (3,549)
Appropriation of fund balance 417,367 610,115 - (610,115)
Total other 481,867 786,655 172,991 (613,664)
Total revenues ' 5,645,572 6,594,965 6,160,910 (434,055)

See notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
(continued)

For the year ended September 30, 2013

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
EXPENDITURES:
General government:
Village Commission:
Personal services 37,287 34,963 34,963 -
Operating expenditures 29,680 28,127 28,127 -
Total Village commission . 66,967 63,090 63,090 -
Village Manager:
- Personal services 252,286 236,679 236,679 -
Operating expenditures 8,800 8,171 8,171 -
Total Village manager 261,086 244 850 244 850 -
Village Clerk: :
Personal services 104,594 107,355 109,937 (2,582)
Operating expenditures 44,125 60,822 60,822 -
Total Village clerk 148,719 168,177 170,759 (2,582)
Finance: | ' '
Personal services 128,732 122,993 122,993 -
Operating expenditures 5,745 12,459 11,267 1,192
Total finance 134,477 135,452 134,260 1,192
Village Attorney:
Operating expenditures 262,752 516,255 526,807 (10,552)
Total Village attorney 262,752 516,255 526,807 (10,552)
Nondepartmental:
Personal services 161,769 37,299 37,299 -
Operating expenditures 831,801 862,361 862,361 -
Capital outlay 20,000 21,774 21,774 -
Total nondepartmental 1,013,570 921,434 921,434 -
Total general government 1,887,571 2,049,258 2,061,200 (11,942)
Public safety: :
Personal services 2,933,167 3,275,258 3,277,570 (2,312)
Operating expenditures 247,200 414,485 420,785 (6,300)
Capital outlay 2,000 38,621 38,621 -
Total public safety 3,182,367 3,728,364 3,736,976 - (8,612)

See notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
(continued)

For the year ended September 30, 2013

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Public works:
Personal services 48,838 48,838 57,656 (8,818)
Operating expenditures 182,000 182,000 257,797 (75,797)
Total public works 230,838 230,838 315,453 (84,615)
Building, planning and zoning:
Personal services 95,457 95,457 94,184 1,273
Capital outlay - - 2,351 (2,351)
Operating expenditures 102,000 102,000 293,297 (191,297)
Total building, planning
and zoning 197,457 197,457 389,832 (192,375)
Parks and recreation;
Personal services 21,109 19,596 19,596 -
Operating expenditures 48,500 205,315 205,315 -
Total parks and recreation 69,609 224,911 224,911 -
Total expenditures 3,567,842 6,430,828 6,728,372 (297,544)
Excess (deficiencies)
of revenues over
expenditures 77,730 164,137 (567.462) (731.599)
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out (75,186) (161,593) (75,186) 86,407
Net change in fund
balance 3 2,544 $ 2544 % (642,648) $ (645,192)

See notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
September 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The Village legally adopts annual budgets for the general fund, most of the special revenue
funds, and the utility funds.

The budgets are prepared on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States, At least 45 days prior to the close of the fiscal year, the Village
Commission is presented with a proposed budget including proposed expenditures and the means
of financing them. After Commission review and public hearings, the budget is adopted prior to
October 1. Budgets are approved on a fund-by-fund basis and management may transfer amounts
between line items in departments as long as the transfer does not amount to more than 5% of the
total budget of each department. All other budgetary transfers must be approved by resolution of
the Village Commission. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental
level.

Budgets are considered a management control and planning tool and as such are
incorporated into the accounting system of the Village. The Village Commission, by resolution,
may make supplemental appropriations for the year up to the amount of revenues in excess of
those estimated. Appropriations not encumbered lapse at year-end. The Commiission approved an’
amendment to the budget for the current fiscal year.

NOTE 2 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

For the year ended September 30, 2013, general fund expenditures exceeded
appropriations in the following departments (the legal level of budgetary control):

Building, planning and zoning $ 192,375
Public Safety $ 8,612
Public Works $ 84,615
Village Attorney $ 10,552
Village Clerk $ 2,582

These unfavorable variances were caused by unbudgeted costs related to unforeseen
circumstances and occurrences during the year.

NOTE 3 - BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

There are no differences to be reconciled between the budgetary comparison schedules and
the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (UNAUDITED)

An analysis of funding progress for the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) for the most recent actuarial
valuation date available is presented as follows:

(b}
Actuarial
Accrued UAAL
Liability as a
(a) (AAL)- Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Actuarial Frozen AAL Funded (c) of Covered
Valuation Value Initial {UAAL) Ratio Covered Payroll
Date of Assets Liability (b)-(a) {a)/(b) Payroll (b-a)/(c)
10/01/12 3 - b 261,000 261,000 0.0% Not available N/A
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally
restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

State Forfeiture Fund - This fund is used to account for state forfeitures
restricted for law enforcement purposes.

Transportation Fund - This fund is used to account for restricted revenues and
expenditures associated with a county levied surtax and designated for public
transportation purposes.

. Children’s’ Services Fund - This fund is used to account for certain grants and

programs that provide for summer programs as well as other adolescent
activities. '

Parks Improvement Fund - This fund is used to account for restricted
revenues and expenditures associated with a county levied surtax and designated
for park improvement purposes



NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

September 30, 2013

Special Revenue Funds

Total
State Children's Parks Nonmajor
Forfeiture Transportation Services Improvement Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS: _
Pooled cash, cash equivalents
and investments $ 54,737 % 460,753 $ - - $ 274,953 % 790,443
Receivables - 38,607 36,641 - 75,248
Due from other funds 19,038 - - - 19,038
Total assets ' $ 73,775 § 499,360 % 36,641 $ 274953 $ 884,729
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable - $ - $ 3413 - % . 1,117 § - $ 5,130
Accrued liabilities - 245 2,411 - 2,656
Due to other funds _ - 192,394 40,795 - 233,189
Total liabilities - 196,052 44,923 - 240,975
Fund balances:
Restricted for: :
Transportation projects - 303,308 - - 303,308
Culture and recreation - - - 274,953 274,953
Law enforcement 73,775 - - - 73,775
Unassigned (deficit) - - (8,282) - (8,282)
Total fund balances 73,775 303,308 (8,282) 274,953 643,754
Total liabilities ‘
and fund balances § 73,775 % 499360 § 36,641 $ 274,953 $ 884,729
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAIJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Special Revenue Funds
Total
State Children's Parks Nonmajor
Forfeiture Transportation Services Improvement Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES:
Taxes $ - $ 261,476 % - 3 - $ 261,476
Fines and forfeitures 26,500 - - - 26,500
Intergovernmental revemue - - 113,481 - 113,481
Interest income 53 - - - 53
Miscellaneous 19,038 - - - 19,038
Total revenues 45,591 261.476 113,481 - 420,548
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety 997 - - - 997
Public works - 78,769 - - 78,769
Culture and recreation - - 129,482 - 129,482
Capital outlay - 169,887 - - 169,887
Total expenditures 997 248,656 129,482 - 379,135
Excess (deficiency)
of revenues over
expenditures 44,594 12,820 (16,001) - 41,413
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES:
Transfers in - 55,248 19,938 - 75,186
Transfers out - {192,394} - (77,431) (269,825)
Total other financing
sources (uses) - {137,146} 19,938 (77,431) (194,639)
Net change in
fund balance 44,594 (124,326) 3,937 {77.,431) (153,226)
FUND BALANCES,
{Deficit) beginning of year 29,181 427,634 (12,219) 352,384 796,980
FUND BALANCES
(Deficit), end of year $ 73,775 $ 303,308 $ (8,282) § 274,953 % 643,754
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Keefe, McCullough & Co., LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor, Village Commission and Village Manager
North Bay Village, Florida
North Bay Village, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the North Bay Village, Florida (the “Village”), as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Village’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 31, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Village’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not ‘express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village’s
internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies” and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and
significant deficiencies. The Village’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly we do not express an opinion on it.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs to be a material weakness.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with

governance. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs to be significant deficiencies.

6550 N. Federal Highway = Suite 410 2 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 % $54.771.08946 = 954.938.9353 (F) @ www.kmcepa.com
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North Bay Village, Florida

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Village’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards n considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

K"'eﬁe’ Wc@ul(op%lt & Co, LLP

KEEFE, McCULLOUGH & CO., LLP

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
March 31, 2014
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Keefe, McCullough & Co,, LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Mayor, Village Commission and Village Manager
North Bay Village, Florida
North Bay Village, Florida

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited North Bay Village, Florida’s (the “Village™) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the Village’s major federal programs for the year ended
September 30, 2013. The Village’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and granis applicable to its federal programs,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Village’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Village’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Village’s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the Village, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended September 30, 2013.

6550 N. Federal Highway = Suite 410 12 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 2 954.771 0894 Z 954.938.9353 (F] & www.krncepa.com
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North Bay Village, Florida

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Village, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Village’s internal control over compliance with
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Village’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

- The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal conirol over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Keefe, Me Cutlowh & Co, ££P
KEEFE, McCULLOUGH & CO., LLP

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
March 31, 2014
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Keefe, McCullough & Co., LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE VILLAGE MANAGEMENT

Honorable Mayor, Village Commission and the Village Manager
North Bay Village, Florida
North Bay Village, Florida

We have audited the basic financial statements of North Bay Village North Bay Village, Florida
(the "Village"), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and have issued our report thereon
dated March 31, 2014,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States: OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Florida
Auditor General. We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards, Independent Auditor’s Report on
Compliance for each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by
OMB Circular A-133, and Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Disclosures in those reports
and schedule, which are dated March 31, 2014, should be considered in conjunction with this
management letter.

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor
General, which govern the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of
Florida. This letter includes the following information, which is not included in the aforementioned
auditor's reports or schedule:

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine
whether or not corrective actions have been taken to address significant findings
and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report. The
status of findings and recommendations made in the previous audit report are
noted in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Part E.

Section 10.554(1)(1)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires our audit to
include a review of the provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes,
regarding the investment of public funds. In connection with our audit, we
determined that the Village complied with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes.

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address
in the management letter any recommendations to improve financial
management. In connection with our audit, our recommendations to improve
financial management are included in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs Part E.

Section 10,554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address
violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have
occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect on the financial
statements that is less than material but more than inconsequential. In connection
with our audit, we did not have any such findings.

6350 N. Federat Highway = Suite 410 % Forf Lavderdale, FL 33308 2 954,771.0896 % 954.938.9353 (F} 2 www.kmccpa.com
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North Bay Village, Florida

Section 10.554(1)(i)5., Rules of the Auditor General, provides that the auditor
may, based on professional judgment, report the following matters that have an
inconsequential effect on financial statements, considering both quantitative and
?ualitative factors: (1) violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements,
raud, illegal acts, or abuse, and (2) control deficiencies in internal control that
are not significant deficiencies. In connection with our audit, control
deficiencies that are material weaknesses and significant deficiencies are
included in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Part
E.

Section 10.554(1)(1)6., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or
official title and legal authority for the primary government and each component
unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this management letter, unless
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The City of North Bay Village,
Florida was incorporated in 1945 as a municipality under the laws of Florida
Statute 23427, In November 2012, the voters approved the removal of “City
of” from the name.

Section 10.554(1)(i)7.a., Rules of the Auditor General, requires a statement be
included as to whether or not the local governmental entity has met one or more
of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and
identification of the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we
determined that the Village did not meet any of the conditions described in
Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Section 10.554 (1) (i)7.b., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we
determine whether the annual financial report for the Village for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2013, filed with the Florida Department of Financial
Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with
the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013.
In connection with our audit, we determined that these two reports were in
agreement. :

Pursuant to Section 10.554(1)(i)7.c. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor
General, we applied financial condition assessment procedures. It is
management's responsibility to monitor the Village's financial condition, and
our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by
management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, this management letter is a public record and its
distribution is not limited. Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States require us to
indicate that this letier is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, Village
Commission, management and the Florida Auditor General, and is not intended to be and should not

be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
/(eefa, M Cul(cw%h & Co, LLP
KEEFE, McCULLOUGH & CO., LLP

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
March 31, 2014
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the grant activity
of the Village and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule
is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule
may differ from amounts presented in or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements.

NOTE 2 - CONTINGENCY

The grant revenue amounts received are subject to audit and adjustment. If any
expenditures or expenses are disallowed by the grantor agencies as a result of such an audit, any
claim for reimbursement to the grantor agencies would become a liability of the Village. In the
opinion of management, all grant expenditures are in compliance with the terms of the grant
agreements and applicable federal and state laws and regulations.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

1.

The auditor’s report expresses a unqualified opinion on the financial statements of North
Bay Village, Florida.

Material weaknesses relating to the audit of the basic financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statemenis Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of North Bay Village,
Florida were disclosed during the audit.

No material weaknesses relating to the audit of the major federal award program is
reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-
133.

The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal programs for North Bay Village,
Florida expresses an unqualified opinion.

There are no findings relative to the major federal program for North Bay Village, Florida,
reported in Part C of this schedule.

The programs tested as major programs are as follows:
Federal Program Federal CFDA Number

Department of Justice
Equitable Sharing Program 16.922

The threshold for distinguishing Type A and Type B projects was $ 300,000 for major
Federal programs.

North Bay Village, Florida was determined to be a low risk auditee pursuant to OMB
Circular A-133.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

The status of findings and recommendations made are noted in the accompanying Schedule

of Findings and Questioned Costs Part E.

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS

No matters to be reported.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

D. OTHER ISSUES

1. No summary schedule of prior audit

findings related to federal programs.

2. No corrective action plan is required be

reported under the Federal Single Audit Act.

findings is required because there were no prior audit

cause there were no findings required to be

E. INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

2006-1

2006-3
2009-1
2010-2

2010-3

20104

2010-7

2012-1

2012-2
2012-3

Capital asset subsidy ledger software,
reconciliation and maintenance

General ledger maintenance
Bank reconciliations

Implement form monthly closing
procedures

Document significant operational and
accounting processes

Assess the accounting department staffing
needs

Consider implementing an enterprise risk
management (ERM) program

Prior year audit journal entries not
recorded :

Grant administration

Enterprise net assets balance restoration
plan be implemented.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

E. INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
PRIOR YEAR INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

2006-1 Capital Assets Subsidiary Detail Ledger Software, Reconciliation and Maintenance:

The Village maintains a manually prepared schedule in Microsoft Office Excel for tracking
its capital assets using a spreadsheet program. The Village should also look into a new software
program designed to maintain fixed schedules to assist in this process. Benefits included in such
programs include the ability to calculate gains and losses upon asset disposition, generation of
reports by location for inventory observation and automatic calculation of depreciation expense
depending on preprogrammed generally accepted methods of depreciation (double declining
balance, straight line, etc.) The existing subsidiary ledger maintained on the spreadsheet requires
constant maintenance and formula manipulation which lends itself to the possibility of errors being
made, miscalculations along with additional time and effort to maintain.

We also noted that the fixed asset schedule was not timely updated during the year and
needed to be adjusted in order to correspond to the Village's books and supporting records
including the inventory that had been during the year. We recommend that the Village maintain its
subsidiary ledger of capital asset detail on a periodic basis including reconciling to the inventory
observation completed in order to properly track, record and maintain custody of fixed assets.

Management's Response/ Status:

The Village has signed a contract with a national software firm for a new fully functional
accounting software system. This will include General ledger, budget, cashiering, building permit,
code enforcement, utility billing as well as fixed assets. The first phase of the software
implementation has been started will be operational around May 2014,

PRIOR YEAR INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)
2009-1 Bank Reconciliations (Material Weakness):

During our audit, we noted that reconciliations of the Village’s operating cash accounts had
been performed but not reconciled to the general ledger for a sigmficant portion of the fiscal year.
We recommend that the Village, along with other closing procedures (2010-2), reconcile its cash
accounts within two weeks of the end of a monthly period. In addition to the preparation of bank
recorciliations by a designated individual, there should be another individual charged with the
review and approval of the reconciliation once it is prepared to verify the reconciliation process is
complete. ‘

Management's Response/Status:

This recommendation has been implemented to the extent possible with the accounting
system design and current software. The new accounting software being implemented this year
will make the reconciliation of the automated monthly accounting tasks. This function will be
completed within 15 days after the end of each month. '
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

E. INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)
PRIOR YEAR INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)
2010-03 Document Significant Operational and Accounting Processes:

We recommend that the Village institute a program to methodically identify and document
its significant operational and accounting processes. Processes include activities and procedures
involved in repeatable operational or accounting transactions or events, such as hiring new
employees, paying invoices, processing payroll, taking physical invemtory of Fixed Assets,
preparing and approving journal entries, etc.

Accounting processes, in particular, are procedures to initiate, authorize, record, process,
and report transactions and involve activities such as the following:

1. Capturing, sorting, and merging data,
Making calculations,

Updating transactions and master files,
Generating traﬁsactions,

- Summarizing and displaying or reporting data,

AN S

Correcting and reprocessing previously rejected transactions, and
7. Correcting erroneous transactions through adjusting journal entries.

_ Documenting a process involves identifying and gaining an understanding of the events or
transactions that trigger performance of the process, the automated or manual procedures used in
performing the process, the person or position responsible for performing the procedures, the
source documents used or generated, the procedures for approval and review and correction of any
errors detected, and the financial or operational entries or reports summarizing the result of the
process. Procedures that may be used to gain an understanding of the workflow or flow of
transactions include inquiry of Village personnel; observation of them performing their duties;
inspection of documents, forms, and records used in or produced in the process; tracing
transactions through the system; and performing a walk-through of the procedures performed in
the process. It may include policy manuals, process models, flowcharts, job descriptions,
documents, and forms, and can be in paper form, electronic files, or other media.

Management's Response/Status:

The new software system that is being implemented this year will bring new procedures for
handling transactions and entries. We have developed the general outline of the procedures but we
will wait for the exact procedures that the software requires. The finance department has added
one new staff position this year and this will allow us to implement these recommendations.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

E. INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)
PRIOR YEAR INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)
2010-07 Consider Implementing an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Program:

Today more than ever, a Village will face risks from both expected and unexpected
channels. To weather the current financial crisis, the Village has to be more proactive than ever
when identifying, assessing, prioritizing, and managing those risks. (i.e. Liquidity Problems,
Security Risks, Credit Risks, Fraud Risks, Compliance Risks, and Strategic Risks). Enterprise risk
management (ERM) is an efficient and functional approach to managing these risks. Using ERM,
the Village can align their tolerance for risk with its current strategy by identifying events that
could have an adverse effect on the Village’s operations and related results, and developing an
action plan to deal with those events. ERM can help the Vililage:

1. Achieve organizational goals by identifying strategic risk opportunities.

2. Enable the Village Manager and those charged with governance to make the best
decisions by providing them with the latest risk information.

3. Align risk identification and risk management with annual performance goals.
4, Encourage employees to communicate any risks and chailenges that they might be
facing.

To design and implement an effective ERM within the Village, we recommend that they do
the following:

1. Define the Village’s risk tolerance clearly and communicate it throughout the
different Departments.

2. | Formally document the risk management struéture.

3. Clearly define the roles and responsibilities of individuals involved in the process.

4, Use technology as much as possible when creating reports and monitoring tools.

Management’s Response/Status:

The Deputy village Manager and the finance director met with the representatives from:
Florida Municipal Insurance Trust (FMIT) which is the agency that the village purchases all
liability insurances thorough. They have implemented this in other Florida municipalities and will
be available to assist North Bay Village. This will be one of our goals to work on during fiscal
year 2014.
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Keefe, McCullough & Co., LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF THE CHILDREN’S TRUST CONTRACTS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the Village Commission
North Bay Village, Florida

Report on the Schedule of Expenditures for each of The Children’s Trust Contracts

We have audited the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures (collectively the “Schedule”) of The
Children’s Trust contracts (1310-7210 and 1410-7210) of North Bay Village, Florida (the “Village”)
for the year ended September 30, 2013, and related notes to the schedule.

Management’s Responsibility for the Schedule

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Schedule in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the Schedule that is free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Schedule

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Schedule based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and The Children’s Trust contracts. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Schedule
are free of material misstatement. ' :

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Schedule. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Schedule, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers interpal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the Schedule in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accotlln‘iing estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
Schedule. '

We believe that our audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. i
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North Bay Village, Florida

Opinion

In our opinion, the Schedule referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
expenditures of The Children’s Trust contracts (1310-7210 and 1410-7210) of North Bay Village,
Florida as of September 30, 2013, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of The Children’s Trust and the

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Village Commission of North Bay Village, Florida and is not
intended to be, and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Keepe, MeCodlorsh & Co. £ £
KEEFE, McCULLOUGH & CO., LLP

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
March 31, 2014



NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF THE CHILDREN'S TRUST CONTRACTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Contract Contract Contract Contract Contract Fiscal Year
Name Term Number Amount Expenditures Expenditures

Out of School August 1, 2012
through _
July 31, 2013 1310-7210 § 134,718 % 95,330 § 111,174

Out of School August 1, 2013

through
July 31, 2014 1410-7210 § 134,718 18,308 18,308
Total expenditures $ 113,638  § 129,482

See accompanying notes to the Schedule.
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE
September 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS
North Bay Village, Florida (the “Village™) is a governmental entity located in Miami Dade
County. The Village provides certain services including literacy, physical fitness, social skills,
cultural activities and nutritious food to approximately fifty elementary school children funded by
the Children’s Trust.
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation and accounting:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of The Children’s Trust Contracts is
presented on the accrual basis of accounting and includes expenditures incurred by “North Bay
Village” during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013.

Donated services, facility use and contributed property:

The Village pays for most services requiring specific expertise. However, a number of
other volunteers have donated significant amounts of their time. Because of the difficulty in
determining the number of hours for such services, those items are not disclosed in the
accompanying financial statements. However, when the value of domated services requires
specific expertise, they are reflected in the financial statements as revenue and expenses at their -
fair value. For the year ended September 30, 2013, the Village recorded no donated services in
the accompanying financial statements.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognized when the services are provided. Amounts received but unearned are
recorded as deferred revenue. Grant and contracts revenue are recognized when the allowable
costs as defined by the individual grants or contracts are incurred.

Allocation of Expenditures:

Expenditures are invoiced in accordance with the budget as approved by The Children’s
Trust. The Children’s Trust contract is a cost reimbursement method of payment, expenditures
allocated to The Children’s Trust contracts are based on the specific identification of costs to The
Children’s Trust program. These costs are allocated based on a reasonable allocation of costs
utilizing a cost method based on children served.

Date of management review:

Subsequent events were evaluated through March 31, 2014, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 3 - ADVANCES

- As of September 30, 2013, there have been no monies advanced to the Village by The
Children’s Trust.



NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 4- DUE TO THE CHILDREN’S TRUST (QUESTIONED COSTS)

: As of September 30, 2013, there are no questioned costs or monies due to The Children’s
Trust by The Village.

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES

Capital equipment is defined by The Children’s Trust as individual items with a value of
$1,000 or greater which have a life expectancy of more than one year. Expenditures for capital
equipment, purchased with The Children’s Trust funds, become assets of The Children’s Trust,
are intended for The Children’s Trust funded programs and are owned by The Children’s Trust
unless the capital equipment is fully depreciated and in the possession of the Village.
Consequently, capital equipment purchased with The Children’s Trust funds is not capitalized.
Instead, capital equipment purchases are expensed in these financial statements. During the year
ended September 30, 2013, the Village did not have any capital equipment purchases.

NOTE 6 - GRANT CONTRACTS

Funding agreements for services to be provided are entered into on an annual basis.
Program expenses made are subject to additional audit by grantor agencies. As a result of such
audits, the grantor may require that amounts be returned. In certain instances, the grantor may
increase its grant of funds to North Bay Village, Florida to offset amounts which would otherwise
be repayable based on audits. During the year ended September 30, 2013, the grantor did not
require that any such amounts be returned.

NOTE 7 — OPERATING LEASE, RENT EXPENSES AND FACILITY OWNERSHIP COSTS

North Bay Village, Florida provides the service contracted for by The Children’s Trust.
These services are provided at a location that is owned by a third party. No funds were
reimbursed by The Children’s Trust to North Bay Village, Florida for the costs related to the
location.



Keefe, McCullough & Co.,, LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH OF THE
CHILDREN’S TRUST CONTRACTS AND REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the Village Commission
North Bay Village, Florida

Report on Compliance for each of the Children’s Trust Contracts

We have audited North Bay Village, Florida (the “Village”) compliance requirements described in
The Children’s Trust Contracts that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Village’s
contracts with The Children’s Trust (1310-7210 and 1410-7210) for the year ended September 30,
2013.

Management’s Responsibility for the Schedule

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants applicable to The Children’s Trust contracts.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Village’s Children’s
Trust contracts based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and The Children’s Trust
contracts. Those standards and The Children’s Trust contracts require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on The Children’s Trust
contracts occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Village’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each of
The Children’s Trust contracts. However, our audit does not provide legal determination of the
Village’s compliance.

Opinion on each of The Children’s Trust Contracts

In our opinion, North Bay Village, Florida complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Children’s
Trust Contracts (1310-7210 and 1410-7210) for the year ended September 30, 2013,
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North Bay Village, Florida

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

The management of the Village is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, and contracts applicable to The
Children’s Trust contracts, In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Village’s internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of The
Children’s Trust contracts to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
The Children’s Trust Contracts, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
on the Village’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
- over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of The Children’s Trust contracts on a timely basis. 4 material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of The Children’s Trust contracts will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of The Children’s Trust contracts that is less severe than a material weakness
in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. o

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of

our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of The Children’s Trust contracts. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Keepe, Mhe Cutlough & Co, £LP

KEEFE, McCULLOUGH & CO., LLP

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
March 31, 2014



NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

The Children’s Trust Contracts Program Specific Audit

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over program:
Material weaknesses) identified? No

Significant deficiency identified that
is not considered to be material
weakness? No

Any audit findings or questioned costs? No

Amount of questioned costs due to
The Children's Trust None

SECTION II - FINDINGS AND RESPONSES - THE CHILDREN’S TRUST CONTRACTS
PROGRAM SPECIFIC AUDIT

Current year:
No matters are reported
Prior year:

No matters are reported



Keefe, McCullough & Co, LLP

Certified Pub_lic Accountants

March 31, 2014

To the Honorable Mayor and Village Council
North Bay Village, Florida
North Bay Village, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities and
each major fund of the North Bay Village, Florida (the “Village”), for the year ended September 30,
2013, and have issued our report on March 31, 2014. Professional standards require that we provide you
with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-133, as well as certain information related to the planned scope
and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our engagement letter to you dated
February 4, 2013. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following
information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the Village are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. No
new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during
2013. We noted no transactions entered into by the Village during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly
from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the Village’s financial statements were as
follows:

1. Reserve for uncollectible accounts related to charges for services. We evaluated the
key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

2, Depreciation of capital assets - Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over
the respective estimated useful lives ranging from 3 to 40 years. The Village has
informed us they used all relevant facts available to them at the time of acquisition to
make the best judgments about the depreciation methods and estimated useful lives of
capital assets. _

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.
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North Bay Village, Florida -2- March 31, 2014

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during
the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the abpropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements that we requested. In addition, none of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either
individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.
Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated March 31, 2014.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Auditors

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the Village’s financial statements or a determination of
the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.
Other Audit Findings or Issues

During our audit, we became aware of certain matters that represent opportunities for the Village
to strengthen its internal controls and operating efficiencies. Such recommendations are made in the
compliance section of our audit.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Mayor, Village Council and management of the
Village and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We would be pleased to discuss any questions that you may have.

Regérds,

Keep‘e, M cuf[w%lt & Co, LLP

KEEFE, McCULLOUGH & CO., LLP



General Fund Revenues

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
BUDGET-IN-BRIEF thru MARCH 31, 2014

Budget March Year-to-Date| March Year To Date Projected Yaar End Surplus/ (Deﬁclt)I
|Revenues % 813014 1
IReal & Personal Property Taxes 3,479,409 2,843,844 B5% 3,482,966 3,557 |
IFranchise Fess 432,086 176,724 41% 448,481 16,385 §
lUtility Service Taxes 486,000 224,698 46% 531,820 45,820 |
(Communication Setvice Tax 276,030 82,991 30% 255,942 (23,088):
ILicenses & Permits 89,000 122,218 137% 178,128 89,128 |
lintergovernmental Revenue 738,312 271,199 37% 741,283 2,971
IFines & Forfeitures 202,000 28,235 14% 127,074 {74,926}
IMisc. Revenue 74,000 88,437 120% 134,012 60,012 |
ICharges for Services 66,680 29,748 45% 59,499 7. 1811
:Total Revenues 5,846,627 3,968,096 68% 5,959,206 112,678 H
lappropiation of Fund Balance - - - -
iTotaI Revenues & Balance 5,346,527 3,068,006 68% 5,959,205 112,678
|
] I
I 1
General Fund Expenditures
IExpen ditures Budget March Year-to-Date March Yeozr To Date Pm}“;?:‘]:;fr End Surplus/ (Deﬁcit)I
Willage Commission Depariment 60,234 21,381 35% 50,502 792}
Village Manager Department 236,730 108,816 46% 240,496 (3,766)i
Willage Clerk Department 149,003 57,862 39% 125,968 23,035 1
iFinance Department 168,228 82,800 48% 183,813 {15,574)
I\ egal Services Depariment 262,750 123,767 47% 265,951 (3,201)
ianerm Govemment Depariment 876,916 423,966 48% 780,207 95,709 i
Ipglice Department 3,532,101 1,620,814 46% 3,531,565 536 |
iRecreation / Human Svees Dept. 241,532 66,371 40% 241,010 522 i
lTransfertoAﬂer School & §ummer 19,838 9,969 50% 19,838 D!
Transfer to Street Mince Fund 210,339 105,170 50% 225,306 (14,967)i
Transfer to Transportation Fund 55,248 27,624 50% 55,248 0 !
| Total Expenditures $,812,000 | § 2,678,341 46% 5,729,004 23,086 |
195,763 :
— e e e e e N B o e e e o S o o e P e ) S 1
] Repa- 3417 6,785,820
| " reons Fro a0 305,588 |
I E2.5% UTD- 3407 352,048 |
| StateF - 1111 73,8121
: ) Checking 3406 1 !
I B Transfers, Capital, 1 ng i;itmg;i% SBA 59,887 |
| 285,525 14,000 e Cstate 4747 219,226 |
I 4.9% 0.2% Cstate 7287 40,301 1
Proj Fund 01900K 088 |
I Proj Fund 0100 Repo 325,014 1
11 - Bank reconciliation current through: 313172014 8,162,693 |
12- Financial statements reconciled through: 31312014
I3— Status of grants reporting: Current
|4- Journal entry postings through 3/31/2014

Ihave been reviewed by management or designee.
I
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IRevenues Butiget March Year-to-Date March Yt:zr To Date Projec;t;:o;iar End Surplus/ (Deﬂclt]i
|Water & Sewer Revenues 3,200,000 1,532,600 48% 3,195,200 {4,800))
ISanitation Revenug 1,528,500 752,548 49% 1,530,006 1,506 1
1Service & Late Faes 85,000 18,969 22% 87,937 {47,063);
|Other Revenue 8,000 13,712 171% 12,997 4,897 |
!T_otal Revenues 4,821,500 2,317,820 48% 4,776,230 [45.270]}
| ]
EEXPGH Altures Budget March Year-to-Date| oo Y".,Z' To Date P’°’e°;f:°;‘;i” Erdl surplus/ (Deﬁcit)!
Utilities Administration 1,531,714 574,481 38% 1,501,292 04221
hwvater Department Expenditures 752,771 291,602 30% 736,208 18,563 |
iSewer Department Expenditures 1,287,590 571,475 A4% 1,253,634 33,956 i
!Sanitalun Expenditures 799,928 380,780 49% 828,492 (29,564)!
[Transfer to Water Imprvmnts 75,000 37,500 50% 75,000 0]
ITransfer to Sanitation Impy. Fund 65,000 32,500 50% 65,000 ol
:Transfer to Sewer Imprvmnts 514,538 257,269 50% 514,538 0 I
|Total Expendituras 5,026,641 2,185,707 43% 4,975,164 51,377 1
INET DIFFERENCE REVENUE/EXPENSE 8,167 1
e tormwater Fund Budget |March Yoar.to-Date| M"ch Y42r T Date  Projected ¥eAT BN sy rpiug/ eficit]
=Revenues 115,000 54,878 48% 108,757 (5.243):
IAppropiafion of Fund Balance 469,223 - 0% 474,370 5,147 |
Total Re 584,223 54,878 9% 584,127 {96)
Total Expenditures 358,967 2,389 1% 358,871 96

NET DIFFERENCE REVENUE/EXPENSE 1]

i
|

Icapltal Project Fund Budget March Year-to-Date March Y:-,:zr To Data Pro;ec;?;loziar End Surplus/ (Deficit)]
L ]
IRevenues (FIND Grants) 137,250 0 0% 137,250 al
:Transfer frorm Parks Improvement Fund 137,250 0 347,250 210,000 :
JAppropiation of Fund Balance 1,231,307 0 0% 1,041,288 {196,021)
Total Revenues 1,505,807 0 0% 1,525,786 19,979
Total Expendituras 1,310,600 0 0% 570,000 740,500 ;
|NET DIFFERENCE REVENUE/EXPENSE 760,479 |
1 [
| March Year To Date |Projected Year End |
IWater Improvements Budget March Year-to-Date o, 9130M14 Surplus/ (Deﬁmt)l
IRevenues - - - 1
(Lransfer from Utility Fund 75,000 37,500 50% 75,000 [ H
Total Revenues 75,000 37,600 50% 75,000 0]
Total Expenditures 75,000 - 0% 75,000 0l
INET DIFFERENCE REVENUE/EXPENSE 0!
H h Year To Date H
Sewer Improvements Budget March Year-to-Date arc o, ijec;f:o;:?r End Surplus! {Deficit)l
Revenues {Loan/Debt Praceeds) 211,865 - % — 211,863 o1
Transfer from Utility Fund 514,538 257,269 50% 514,538 1]
Total Revenues 726,401 257,269 35% 726,401 0!
[Total Expenditures 726,401 119,084 16% 726,401 'H
INET DIFFERENCE REVENUE/EXPENSE g1
f 1
F Warch Year 1o Date | Projected Year End 1
I to- ) 1
|Sanitation Improvemants Budget March Year-to-Date % 913014 Surplus/ (Deﬂclt)l
IRevenues 0 0 - - 0l
IT_ransfer from Utility Fund 55,000 0 0% 65,000 [}
Total Revanues 85,000 0 0% 65,000 0,
Total Expenditures 65,000 1] 0% 65,000 0]
ol

INET DIFFERENCE REVENUE/EXPENSE
r

STREET MAINTENANCE FUND - LOCA

L OPTION GAS TAX
March Year To Date

Preojected Year End

IStreet Maintenance Fund Budaet March Year-to-Date % /30014 Surplus/ {Deficit)]
|Revenues 115,126 31,821 2-3-% 121,986 8,870 |
ITransfer from General Fund 210,339 105,170 50% 225,306 14,967 1
Total Revenues 325,465 136,990 42% 347,302 21,837 ;
Total Expenditures 325,466 146,962 45% 347,302 121,837}

INET DIFFERENCE REVENUE/EXPENSE

ol

L e e e e e
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE
BUDGET-IN-BRIEF thru MARCH 31, 2014

TRANSPORTATION FUND - CITT

i March Year To Date| Projected Year End L
i Budget March Year-to-Date o, Surplus! (Doficit
Ifransportation Fund 9 o, %014 rplus/ ( )!
[Revenues 225,000 96,265 43% 225,000 0
| Transfer fram General Fund 56,248 27,624 50% 55,248 o] |
[Appropiaticn of Fund Balance 122,811 0 - 303,308 180,497 |
Total Revenues 403,059 123,889 31% 583,556 180,487 ¢
|Tota| Expenditures 403,069 20,671 5% 379,330 23,729 )
INET DIFFERENCE REVENUE/EXPENSE 204,226 1
I -1
BUILDING FUND
March Year To Date |Projected Year End .
!Bui! ding Fund Budget March Year-to-Date o a130/14 Surplus/ (If'l:eﬁclt)l
|Revenues - Permits 513,000 453,369 B8% 588,556 75,556 |
10ther Revenues 37,000 9,657 26% 19,314 {17,686)1
Total Revenues 660,000 463,026 4% 607,870 567,570
Total Expenditures 546,783 340,375 2% 529,343 17,440
NET DIFFERENCE REVENUE/EXPENSE 75,310 1
1
DEBT SERVICE FUND
Narch Year To Date j
iDebt Service Fund Budget March Year-to-Date o, ijec;t;;lo;:iar End Surplus/ (Deficit)]
|Revenues 661,375 558,481 85% 661,375 0y
Total Revenues & Carryover 661,375 559,481 85% 713,604 52,229
Total Expenditures 661,375 238,093 36% 661,375 0
NET DIFFERENCE REVENUE/EXPENSE 52,228 |
1
AFTER SCHOOL & SUMMER CAMP
I March Year To Date [Projected Year End 1
|After School & Summer Fund Budget March Year-to-Date o, 9/30/14 Surplus/ (Dsﬂcit)l
{Revenues 134,718 32,563 24% 134,718 ol
Mransfer from General Fund 19,938 9,869 50% 19,938 ol
Total Revenues 154,656 42,632 28% 164,666 0
Total Expanditures 164,657 48,272 29% 184,667 0]
NET DIFFERENCE REVENUE/EXPENSE ol
STATE FORFEITURE FUND
March Year To Date i
State Forfaiture Fund Budget March Year-to-Date % Pro;ec;?;;l;iar End Surplus/ (Deficit)
Revenues s 29 - — 20 20
Total Revenues - 29 - 20 20
Total Expenditures - - - - [1]
NET DIFFERENCE REVENUE/EXPENSE 20
STATE FORFEITURE FUND Projected YEAR END FUND BALANCE 73,775
FEDERAL FORFEITURE FUND
1 March Year To Date
IFederal Forfsiture Fund Budgst March Year-to-Date % P r°]°°;7:oma' End surpiuss (Deﬁcit)l
1Appropiation of Fund Balance 367,265 1%,958 47% 367,265 [FH
(Revenues - 47,333 R 48,552 48,552 §
Total Revenues 367,266 224,291 - 415,817 48,552 |
Total Expenditures 367,268 173,958 47% 396,101 (28,836)'
NET DIFFERENCE REVENUE/EXPENSE 19,718 H
FEDERAL FORFEITURE FUND Projected YEAR END FUND BALANCE 66,012

PARKS IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND

March Year To Date [Projscted Year End L
!P arks Improvement Fund Budget March Year-to-Date % $30M4 Surplus/ (Deflcnt)!
jRevenues - - - 539,220 538,220 |
Total Revenues - - 539,220 539,220 |
Trangier to Capitai Projects Fund 137,250 - - 347,250 210,000 1
Total Expanditures - - - - |
{NET DIFFERENCE REVENUE/EXPENSE 329,220
PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND Projected YEAR END FUND BALANCE 604,173
POLICE IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND
arch Year To Date | Projected Year End .
!Police Improvemant Fund Budget March Year-to-Date ¥, /30114 Surplus/ {Deficit)l
Revenues - 148,754 - 148,754 148,754 3
Total Revenues - 148,764 - 148,754 148,754 1
Total Expenditures B - . - -1
NET DIFFERENCE REVENUE/EXPENSE 148,764 1
POLICE IMPROVEMENT FUND Projected YEAR END FUND BALANCE 148,754 |
1




